

ACTIONS OF THE

1967

MINNESOTA LEGISLATURE

epartment

Legislative Research Committee

KFM 5415 .M56 1967

August 1967

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA



150,4

2304

1967

INTRODUCTION

"Actions of the 1967 Minnesota Legislature" is designed to provide members of the Legislature and other interested persons with a summary of major legislation passed during the 1967 regular session and extra session. This publication, by providing a topical reference to enactments and a detailed and historical analysis of major state appropriations, should serve as a sourcebook. Although the report was compiled without benefit of the session laws or the bound permanent journals, the material contained herein is believed to be accurate.

The report includes a summary of changes in existing laws and new laws enacted by the 1967 sessions. Amendments to existing laws are not always indicated. A number of enactments have been excluded because of their minor effect both as to substantive change and limited or local application. The summaries are necessarily brief and in many cases indicate only the general purpose of the law or the major changes effected. Summaries are identified by chapter number and legislative file number. Each enactment is grouped according to its main topic; in some instances summaries are grouped under more than one heading. The headings are identical to those used in previous editions of "Actions".

Additional information on all of the laws may be obtained by referring to the newspaper edition of the session laws which should be available soon.

A large portion of this report is devoted to detailed analysis and historical review of major state appropriations and the state building program.

Appropriation figures for the 1967 regular session and extra session were compiled by accountants on the staff of the Senate Finance Committee and the House Appropriations Committee.

Members of the legislature are urged to submit suggestions to the Legislative Research Committee for improving the usefulness of this summary.

Research Department Legislative Research Committee 12 State Capitol St. Paul, Minnesota 55101

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA

LEGISLATIVE HIGHLIGHTS

The Sixty-Fifth Session of the Minnesota Legislature convened on January 3, 1967 and adjourned sine die on May 22, 1967. During the session 2,360 bills were introduced in the Senate and 2,655 bills were introduced in the House of Representatives. Of the total 5,015, 928 were enacted into law, consisting of 909 chapters, one veto by the Governor, four pocket vetoes, nine resolutions and five recalls.

An Extra Session, which convened on May 23 and adjourned sine die on June 2, 1967, was also held. During this time 81 bills were introduced in the Senate and 88 bills were introduced in the House of Representatives. Of the total 169 bills, 60 were finally enacted, there being one veto by the Governor and a repassage of the bill over his veto.

 $\frac{\partial u}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} = \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} + \frac{\partial u}{\partial x} =$

than the first of the control of the

entre de la companya La transfera de la companya de la c

in the second se

tuan in the graph of the second

TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
Introduction	# u.g.c
Legislative Highlights	
Agriculture	. 1-2
Business and Labor	
Banking	. 3-4
General Business	4-5
Insurance	6-8
Labor	8-9
Liquor Control	9-10
Conservation	
Game and Fish	11-12
General Conservation	12-13
Minerals and Timber	13-14
Parks and Forests	
Soil and Water	14
Counties and Towns	
General	15-18
Hennepin County	18-20
Ramsey County	20-21
St. Louis County	21-22
Crime and Correction	23-24
Education	
Elementary, Secondary and General Education	25-27
Higher Education	
Election Laws	28-29
General Legislation	30-31

TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont.)

	Page
Health and Welfare	32-34
Highways	
General	35-37
Motor Vehicle and Traffic Regulations	37-39
Judiciary	40-42
Municipalities	43-45
Municipalities - Cities of the First Class	•
General	46-47
Duluth	47
Minneapolis	47-48
St. Paul	48-49
Retirement Systems	50-52
State Government	
Examining and Licensing Boards	53-55
Major Appropriations	55
State Departments	55-56
State Employees	57
Miscellaneous	5 7- 59
Taxation	
General	60
Income Tax	61
Inheritance, Gift and Estate Taxes	61
Property Tax	62-63
Vetoed Bills	64
Interim Commissions	64

TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont.)

Appropri	ation	s		Page
Table	I	-	Summary of 1967 Legislative Appropriations by Fund, by Year	65
Table	II	-	Estimated "Open" or "Standing" Appropriations from General Revenue and Income Tax School Funds	66
Table	III	-	1967 Direct Legislative Appropriations by Fund, by Year	67-68
Table	IV	-	Comparison of Five Major Appropriation Bills, 1967 Legislative Session	69
Table	V	-	Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1959 through 1967 - Four Major Bills	70
Table	VI		Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1959 through 1967 - Education	71
Table	VII	-	Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1959 through 1967 - Semi-State	72
Table	VIII	_	Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1959 through 1967 - State Departments	73
Table	IX	7	Comparison Major Appropriation Bills - Legislative Sessions 1959 through 1967 - Welfare and Corrections	74
Table	X	-	Appropriations for Education (Other than University and State Colleges) 1942 through 1969	7 ⁻ 5
Table	ХI		Appropriations for the University of Minnesota for Fiscal Years 1935 through 1969	76
Table	XII	-	Appropriations for Minnesota State Colleges, 1946 through 1969	77
Table	XIII	-	Appropriations for State Institutions, 1940 through 1969	78
Table	XIV	-	Appropriations for Welfare and Corrections Activities, 1940 through 1969	79
Table	x v		Total Major Appropriation Bills	80
Table	XVI	=	State Bonds Authorized by the 1965 Legislature	81
Table	XVII	-	Summary Comparison of Senate, House and Conference Building Bills, 1967 - 1969	82-83
Table	xvii	[-	Detail of New Borrowing for State and Junior College	84

- the control of the co
- and the second of the second o
- and the second of the second o \$

 - Markey Lander of the Control of the
 - en rapadi kana kentra di salah di sebagai kentra kentra pengalah di sebagai kentra di sebagai kentra di sebagai Sebagai kentra di se
 - in the state of the second of
 - or and the second production of the second production of the second production of the second production of the The second production of the second production of the second production of the second production of the second ,
 - ing and the control of the control o

 - in the first in Depth of the contract of the c
 - en de la composition La composition de la
- en dit en la vidita de la vida de la composition de la vida de la composition de la vida de la vida de la vida La vida de la vida de
- A Company of the Comp

ACTIONS OF THE 1967 MINNESOTA LEGISLATURE

	AGRICULTURE
E.S. Chap. 36 SF 32	Creates a meat industry division within the Department of Agriculture and a meat improvement board to advise the department in the development of the meat industry in Minnesota.
Chap. 133 SF 462	Adds to the definition of agricultural seeds, those of oil and of vegetable grown for processing, including in the former flax and soybeans, but not corn. Prescribes labels for agricultural seed containers to include the new definitions of agricultural and tree and shrub seeds, and what shall appear theron. Adds certain fees for cereals, peas, flax, and soybeans.
Chap. 141 HF 336	Makes minor revision in definition of "person" as regards the candling grading, handling and marketing of eggs, such that a producer of eggs when selling eggs produced on a farm occupied and cultivated by him shall not be a person within the act.
Chap. 147 HF 851	Repeals the law requiring the testing for tuberculosis of cattle exhibited at fairs or other shows.
Chap. 166 SF 751	After January 1, 1968, the sale or use of modified live hog cholera vaccine is prohibited except by permission of the board.
Chap. 219 HF 687	Relates to dairy products, includes transfer stations in definition of dairy plants and excludes wholesale establishments. Revises definition of milk, which shall include no more than 8.5 percent milk solids-not-fat. Generally empowers the commissioner to impose more stringent standards upon processing. Raises to \$300.00 per plant the application fee for a Grade A permit.
Chap. 257 HF 308	Relates to requirements for installation on farms of bulk tanks for milk, changing effective dates of certain provisions.
Chap. 275 HF 1511	Authorizes the issuance of permits to mink ranchers by the Livestock Sanitary Board to remove, transport and use for feed the carcasses of certain domestic animals.
Chap. 311 HF 1126	Relates to the sale of property by the state, permitting the Commissioner of Administration to sell farm and garden products at market price without competitive bids.
Chap. 313 HF 1466	Relates to the licensing and inspecting of certain dairy industry activities, permitting the governing authority of any municipality to provide for such inspection.
Chap. 345 HF 1295	Relates to the use of the words "butter" or "buttered" in advertis- ing or representation, providing for the promulgation by the Com- missioner of Agriculture of rules and regulations in the use of

these words.

AGRICULTURE (cont.)

- Chap. 417 The Potato Industry Promotion Act of Minnesota relates to the promotion, advertising, research and development of Irish potatoes providing for area potato councils and prescribing their powers, duties and authority; prescribing a tax on potato production subject to the act; providing for its collection and providing penalties for the violation of the terms of this act.
- Chap. 434 Relates to frozen foods, authorizing the Commissioner of Agriculture HF 1467 to establish standards of identity and purity for certain frozen foods and prohibiting the sale of non-conforming frozen foods.
- Chap. 510 Relates to the offering of animals for public service, providing that the registration certificate issued by the livestock sanitary board shall be permanent and prohibiting the board from requiring by rule or regulation certain testing.
- Chap. 513 Relates to county agricultural societies, including the carcasses of livestock exhibited off the fairgrounds in the definition of exhibits for which premiums may be paid.
- Chap. 564
 An application for required inspection of potatoes shall be deemed denied if the applicant is in arrears for prior inspections longer than 30 days before the date of the new application. The commissioner may designate other inspection points and should these be more than 30 miles from an established inspection office, mileage costs shall be assessed and added to the fees.
- Chap. 635 Regulates the salvaging and reconditioning of foods, requiring a permit to conduct such operation, to be granted by the commissioner, as well as a contract from him for supervision of the operation at a specified price for inspectors and laboratory personnel. A surety bond shall be posted to assure payment of these inspection fees. Provides for various exceptions to the licensing inspection requirements.
- Chap. 672 An article of food shall be misbranded if served as an article of food which is defined or for which a standard of identity has been adopted by law or regulation and fails to conform thereto.
- Chap. 756
 When licensed by the commissioner of agriculture, a food manufacturer, processor or distributor shall be exempted from licensing requirements of municipal corporations or other subdivisions of state government, except those imposed by the above in which the manufacturer locates a plant. Applies to delivery equipment.
- Chap. 881 Provides that grains at terminals shall be inspected by an inspector licensed by the U.S. Department of Agriculture under the U.S. Grain Standards Act, unless such has previously been so inspected or is being moved between elevators owned by the same person or firm. Raises terminal license fee to \$50.00 for each elevator. Grain shall also be inspected by deputies of the Railroad and Warehouse Commission if not accomplished as above, and in cases of interhouse transfers or when grain is "run for grade", by request of the warehouseman.

BUSINESS AND LABOR

Banking --

- E.S. Chap. 30 Includes trustees in bankruptcy among the exception regarding the SF 47 pledging of assets by banks.
- Chap. 51 Establishes an advisory council on credit unions to consult with, SF 146 advise and recommend to Commissioner of Banks, and provides for procedures governing suspension, winding-up and receivership of credit unions.
- Chap. 63 Further qualifies the circumstances under which the merger of credit unions may be approved by the Commissioner of Banks to include situations of share impairment.
- Chap. 102 Limits the disclosure of information gained by the Commissioner of Banking to certain situations only. Raises the assessment rate on credit unions of various sizes. Makes various other changes relating to banks and banking.
- Chap. 156

 Requires that checks drawn on banks or trust companies must be settled at par, unless appertaining to a special collection item.

 Also limits to 30% the amount of a banks reserves which may be invested in U. S. obligations to mature within one year.
- Chap. 157 Empowers savings, building and loan associations to enter agreements WFF 1266 with members to promote thrift on a periodic payment program and to provide dividends based on categorization of participants, all subject to the approval of the commissioner.
- Chap. 195 Exempts from registration requirements the securities issued by Credit unions.
- Chap. 229 Relates to bank and trust companies, deleting the \$10,000.00 single MF 1395 account limit to be invested in certificates of deposit or savings accounts, and deletes the requirement that the bank involved be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.
- Chap. 260 Provides that banks or trust companies may be formed for any period specified on its certificate of incorporation.
- Chap. 261 Relates to small loans, raising the defining limit to \$900.00, pre-SF 433 scribing maximum interest rates of $1\frac{1}{2}\%$ on the unpaid balance of loans over \$300.00, but less than \$600.00, and 1 1/4% on the remainder.
- Chap. 301

 Relates to credit unions, providing for the indemnification of officers or directors against expenses arising out of any action to which the officer or director is a party by reason of his position, authorizing the directors to suspend any member of the credit committee if such action is deemed in the best interest of the credit union, regulating loan expenses which may be charged to borrowing members in addition to interest, and providing for liquidation proceedings.

Chap. 337 HF 660	Relates to garnishment, prohibiting garnishment by reason of a debt owed a credit union.
Chap. 341 MF 880	Relates to money and interest rates, exempting from the operation of the usury laws any banks for cooperatives created or operating under the Federal Form Credit Act of 1933.
Chap. 359 HF 1777	Relates to the registration of securities, exempting therefrom commercial paper or negotiable promissory notes maturing in not more than six months.
Chap. 533 HF 1771	Relates to savings and building and loan associations, giving such organizations the powers conferred upon a Federal Savings and Loan Association organized under the Home Owners Loan Act of 1933.
General Busines	S →
E.S. Chap. 49 SF 5	Lowers to \$10,000.00 the gross solicitation limit above which a charitable organization must report. The financial statement submitted shall be accompanied by a certified public accountant's opinion if receipts have exceeded \$25,000.00. No charitable organization shall expend for solicitation costs more than 40% of its gross receipts for the 12 month period.
Chap. 92 SF 437	Makes certain minor revisions and rephrases sections pertaining to soft drinks.
Chap. 155 MF 328	Requires that all cabooses built after January 1, 1968, be of steel or other equivalent metal construction, and shall be equipt with adequate reflectors or other warning devices.
Chap. 165 SF 439	Sunday Closing Law. Prohibits the sale of certain commodities on Sundays or holidays, violations of which are punishable by fine of \$100 or 10 days for the first offense.
Chap. 174 HF 129	Provides that doers or side lights of public or private buildings made with clear glass panels must be manufactured with markings.
Chap. 302 HF 1301	Relates to the investigation and enforcement of certain laws re- lating to unfair, discriminatory and other unlawful practices in business, commerce or trade; transferring the administration thereof from the Department of Business Development to the attorney general.
Chap. 315 SF 553	Relates to itinerant minnow dealers, reducing the penalty for violation of the laws from a gross misdemeanor to a misdemeanor.
Chap. 323 SF 902	Relates to the filing by certain public utilities, taconite companies and semi-taconite companies of certain instruments required to be filed under the provisions of the Uniform Commercial Code.
Chap. 338 HF 673	Relates to recordation of mortagages or deeds of trust by companies engaged in the business of transporting oil, gas, petroleum products, or other derivatives by pipeline.

Chap. 377 HF 1843	Relates to the practice of pharmacy, specifying the qualifications of persons who may compound and dispense prescriptions allowing "pharmacist interns" to dispense prescriptions under certain conditions.
Chap. 522 HF 1296	Relates to bakeries and bakery products, providing statewide bakery sanitation and bakery product standards of identity and labeling.
Chap. 593 SF 569	Requires that barbers obtain shop registration cards to be issued annually by the Barber Board. Non-transferable, the card must be displayed visibly, and can be revoked by the board for any reasons listed within the act. The fee for such card will be \$15.00 originally, with a \$2.00 per year renewal.
Chap. 606 SF 585	Mobile homes not registered properly before May 1st of each year, shall be subjected to a penalty of 8% of the assessment. Taxes must be paid within fourteen days after becoming subject to them, rather than percent of validly registered, the \$15.00 fee is transferable between dealers upon sale of the mobile home.
Chap. 650 MF 2568	Inspection fees shall not be levied on hives or colonies of bees imported from bordering states if such state has a reciprocal practice.
Chap. 673 NF 1518	Excludes meats and meat products frozen in retail stores for direct sale from definition of commercial canneries, or where preservation of vegetable products is accomplished by use of preservatives. Includes sanatarians among those who may be hired to inspect. All findings shall be examined under supervision of a bacteriologist. The maximum assessment for inspections is raised to \$1,500.00 per year, and the commissioner shall allow deductions for net weight of meats which are approved by the U. S. Department of Agriculture.
Chap. 720 SF 1125	Empowers Commissioner of Aeronautics to loan air navigation facil- ities to private owners of airports licensed for public use, on such conditions as he shall determine in addition to statutory regulation.
Chap. 755 MF 2365	Exporting minnow dealer's licenses and vehicle licenses are void upon death of licensee or sale of the business. A succeeding owner or widow or heir or administrator may repurchase the license.
Chap. 788	Business securities listed on the Pacific Coast Stock Exchange, are exempted from registration.
Chap. 817 MF 1947	Provides for the renewed existence of nonprofit corporations; establishes procedure for renewal and requirements for compliance.
the state of the s	

Insurance --

- E.S. Chap. 2 Regulates various facets of issuance, amount, form and other SF 6 particulars regarding credit life, accident and health policies in the state; and provides penalties for the violation thereof.
- E.S. Chap. 10 Regulates the use of reinsurance, prohibiting the reduction of liabilities or expenses by certain companies without approval by the commissioner, and provides for filing procedures and requirements.
- Chap. 310 Relates to insurance companies, providing for the suspension, revocation or refusal to grant or renew the certificate of authority of an insurance company because of unqualified management, providing for judicial review and granting the Commissioner of Insurance the authority to issue implementing regulations.
- Chap. 357 Relates to insurance, setting fees for certain examinations and for HF 1758 filing certain papers.
- Chap. 360 Relates to examinations by the Commissioner of Insurance, providing for the triennial examination of medical, dental or hospital service plan corporations for financial soundness.
- Chap. 363 Relates to insurance companies regulating management contracts, MF 1820 providing that certain management contracts must be approved by the Commissioner of Insurance and setting standards by which the commissioner is to judge the contract.
- Chap. 368 Relates to insurance companies, providing for the notification to policyholders of the insolvency of the company.
- Chap. 369 Relates to insurance companies, providing for notification by the NF 1945 Commissioner of Insurance to the insurance departments of all other states of the suspension of a company's right to transact business in this state.
- Chap. 371 Relates to insurance companies regulating the reserves and payments of companies selling insurance on a variable basis.
- Chap. 395 Relates to insurance companies, providing comprehensive regulation for insurance companies in the State of Minnesota.
- Chap. 410 Relates to insurance companies, requiring the Commissioner of Insur-SF 1526 ance to report violations of law by insurance companies to the governor and attorney general.
- Chap. 422 Relates to insurance companies establishing capital and surplus requirements and providing procedures for enforcing such requirements.
- Chap. 431 Relates to insurance, providing for a temporary insurance agent's license for certain persons.

Chap. 448 Relates to insurance companies, providing for notification to the WF 1941 Commissioner of Insurance of disciplinary action against the company in other states.

Chap. 457 Relates to insurance, permitting the Commissioner of Insurance to require that documents filed with him be verified.

Chap. 463 Relates to casualty insurance, regulating the non-cancellability and notice of non-renewal of automobile liability insurance.

Chap. 572

Applicants for licenses to act as insurance agents shall complete a program of studies of a minimum of ten hours in the line for which application is made. Previously licensed applicants need not comply. The commissioner may exempt such lines as he sees fit from this requirement, and such shall not apply to farm windstorm, and hail applicants. Any applicant holding a license within three years before application need not take this examination. Such exam and program of studies shall not apply to appliants as non-resident agents duly licensed in their own states, assuming reciprocity of the waiver.

Chap. 586

Township mutual insurance companies may be established where a surplus of \$300,000.00 exists, and such formed companies shall be subject to general Minnesota corporation laws and insurance restrictions.

Chap. 589

Domestic stock companies may acquire capital stock of insurance companies, even if they themselves are insurance companies, notwithstanding the limits on investment in the insurance code, if approved by the commissioner.

Chap. 590
With certain exceptions, makes unlawful the sale of insurance by a company not duly authorized to do business in Minnesota, including those transactions conducted by mail. Empowers the commissioner to enjoin violators and limits the availability of the courts for policy enforcement by those not authorized. Service of process on the secretary of state shall constitute valid service of such companies. Excludes certain types of companies. Violators of the act will be fined up to \$1,000.00.

Requires that the commissioner make periodic investigations of insurance companies, especially at their inception, including any shifts in management structure or ownerships. Delineates the scope of commissioners authority to investigate persons, management and companies controlling domestic insurance companies. The commissioner may also investigate foreign companies seeking to do business in the state. A full report shall be made of all investigations, and one copy issued to the examined company.

Requires disclosure of changes in principal management of insurance companies, of acquisitions of stock amounting to more than 5% of any class of equity security therein, and of the holding of principal management in excess of 5% in any insurance companies or agencies.

HF 2296

Chap. 591

Chap. 609 SF 1527

Chap. 699 SF 1413	A licensed insurance agent may direct his commissions to be paid to the partnership or corporation employing him.
Chap. 737 SF 2105	Changes real estate section of Section 60.49, to include holdings by life companies, and to include invested assets not including real estate acquired or held for the convenience and accommodation of its business.
Chap. 764 NF 2459	Revises the circumstances and procedure for issuance of insurance at rates in excess of filed standard rates. An inspection of the risk shall be made, to serve as sole basis for determining the rate, the applicants shall certify his inability to obtain standard rates, the policy requirements shall be fair, and each excess policy shall bear an endorsement. Provides penalities for violations.
Chap. 765 MF 2460	Revises M.S. 1965, Section 70.38, Subd. 7, to be identical with Chapter 764, above.
Chap. 837 MF 380	Provides that automobile liability insurance must afford coverage under provisions approved by the Commissioner of Insurance against uninsured motorists, which can be waived by the insured, in writing.
Labor	
Chap. 330 MF 186	Relates to workmen's compensation providing for benefits to be paid to injured employees of uninsured employers.
Chap. 342 HF 915	Relates to employment security, deleting the provisions regarding the termination of a female person's employment within ninety days after marriage.
Chap. 387 SF 869	Relates to labor and working conditions in places of employment, providing conditions under which the use of certain types of heaters may be permitted.
Chap. 429 MF 1109	Relates to garnishment, increasing fee paid to the garnishee for disclosure from one dollar to two dollars.
Chap. 439	Relates to employment security, redefining the term "base period" and establishing the procedure to be followed by an employer upon separation of an employee from employment.
Chap. 517 MF 924	Relates to the assignment, sale or transfer of unearned or not yet due wages or salary, providing that the prohibitions against assignment shall not apply to wages or salary in excess of \$1,500.00 per month.

Chap. 573 HF 689

Amends section relating to employment security, providing that "wage credits" shall include both wages paid and wages payable. Between April 1, 1965 and June 30, 1967, "wage credits" shall mean any remuneration earned for insured work, except in seasoned employment and that earned by students as an integral part of a course of study. These stipulations expire on September 30, 1968. A "credit week" is any for which wages were paid and payable but not paid of \$26.00 or more by one employer for insured work. Raises the computational base on the fund, changing the ranges in which certain percentages will be applied and raises the number ... of credit weeks from seventeen to eighteen, the maximum in any given week to \$50.00, and provides for the disqualification from benefits for discharge due to gross misconduct. The commissioner may disqualify benefits from the year, the maximum then allowable being an amount equal to twelve times his weekly benefit amount where discharge was due to gross misconduct. Where a separation is voluntary and without cause, or due to an assumption of family obligations, 20% of the benefits so provided for shall be charged to the employer in determining experience ratios. Benefits paid where discharge was due to misconduct not as severe shall not be so used.

Chap. 617 HF 1135 Employers' voluntary payments toward employment security program must be made during the thirty days after mailing date of notice of his contribution rate. No new experience ratio shall be computed nor rate reduced due to voluntary payments made after the one-hundred-twenty-day period beginning with the first day of the calendar year for which the ratio is effective.

Chap. 743 HF 2149

The Minneapolis Fair Employment Practice Commission is empowered to examine witnesses, enjoin, enforce affirmative actions. Makes judicial review available to parties aggrieved by decisions of the commission, and empowers the latter to obtain court orders to enforce its decisions. Establishes procedure for those ends.

Chap. 770 HF 2510 Empowers Attorney General to appoint two special assistant attorneys general as chief counsel for the department of employment security.

Chap. 806 HF 1751 Adds to the definition of employee county assessors and supervisors of assessments.

Liquor Control --

Chap. 19 SF 337 Extensively redrafts statutes relating to intoxicating liquors and the penalties for violators relating thereto.

Chap. 20 SF 338 Defines various terms relevant to non-intoxicating malt liquors, provides that one-half the county license fee be paid to the town board of the town containing the business, deletes prohibitions regarding ownership of on-sale establishments, redrafts common-carrier licensing provisions, redrafts other provisions.

Chap. 145 HF 383	Relates to elections on the sale of liquor in cities of the 4th class, amending the sections providing for such elections to make them applicable only to cities of such class.
Chap. 494 SF 1058	Relates to intoxicating liquors, prohibiting the sale of intoxicat- ing liquors within certain distances from institutions of higher learning and providing the method by which such measurement is to be made.
Chap. 691 SF 615	Motels and restaurants having seating capacities of 30 or more may sell liquor with food on Sundays between noon and midnight, to persons seated at tables. Special license required from municipal- ity. Must be voted upon by municipality before effective.
Chap. 697 SF 1233	Authorizes county issuance of "on-sale" liquor licenses in un- organized or unincorporated areas of the county. Three may be issued with one additional for each two-thousand population or major fraction thereof.
Chap. 712 SF 290	Except in cities of first, second and third classes, a liquor license may be issued jointly to congressionally chartered veteran's organizations.
Chap. 778 HF 2608	Repeals Laws 1967, Chapter 20, Section 11, relating to non-intoxicating malt liquor.

CONSERVATION

Game and Fish --

Chap. 35 SF 396	Relates to game and fish, changes the type of locking seal for deer to include those not metal, and rephrases other sections.
Chap. 36 SF 440	Relates to the taking of fish within 50 feet of any fishway, repealing M.S. 1965, Section 101.42, Subd. 14.
Chap. 37 SF 830	Extends to midnight, March 12, the time fish houses may remain on the ice in 1967.
Chap. 41 SF 451	Provides that migratory waterfowl may be dressed out having the head and feet removed provided one fully feathered wing is left attached.
E.S. Chap. 45 SF 66	Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to enter agreements with private landowners to improve or develop wildlife habitat on such private land by providing financial, technical, professional and material assistance.
Chap. 64 SF 434	Deletes the limitation on the proportion of moneys received for game and fish licenses, timber and other use permits which may be used for the acquisition and maintenance of public hunting grounds and other uses.
Chap. 159 SF 61	Permits party hunting by bow and arrow hunters, enabling one of the party to take more than one deer, to be credited to another member of the party if he has none.
Chap. 175 HF 454	Relates to migratory waterfowl, deleting the restrictions on goose hunting in Grant, Traverse, Stevens and Big Stone Counties.
Chap. 263 SF 1031	Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to set the season for the taking of trout, except in certain counties.
Chap. 308 HF 88	Relates to wild animals, prohibiting the dragging of weights through aquatic vegetation for the purpose of scaring or flushing fish.
Chap. 316 SF 554	Relates to fish and game, defining the word minnow.
Chap. 375 HF 695	Relates to wild animals, prohibiting the use of motor propelled vehicles for the purpose of or in connection with hunting deer.
Chap. 425 HF 882	Relates to wild animals, providing for a permanent license at the prevailing fee for an individual resident license for any resident aged 70 or over.
Chap. 612 SF 2252	Authorizes the use of smooth bore muzzle loading muskets of under 45 caliber and rifle muzzle loading muskets of under 40 caliber which cannot be loaded from the breach, for hunting deer.

CONSERVATION (cont.)

Chap. 733 SF 1684 Bow and arrow season on deer shall run from October 15 to November 15 in a year and area when the Commissioner provides that deer may not be taken by legal firearms in that year in that area.

Chap. 904 SF 636 Extends to three days the limit on a short-term fishing license and provides for a husband and wife license for \$9.

Chap. 906 HF 1815 Provides that residents under 13 years of age may take small game without a license.

General --

E.S. Chap. 21 SF 25 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation and county auditors of any county to convey easements for various purposes to the United States or State of Minnesota upon state owned or tax forfeited lands.

Chap. 50 HF 433 Authorizes county auditors to sell licenses to harvest wild rice, through the channels now existing for game and fish licensing.

Chap. 259 SF 254 Provides that the governing board of a watershed district may chose the facilities to be used as the district's principal place of business.

Chap. 326 SF 1355 Relates to the Great River Road, providing for alternate route designations.

Chap. 568 HF 86 Abolishes the office of Surveyor General, transferring all powers of the office to the Commissioner of Conservation. Empowers the Commissioner to designate a timber "scaler" to measure cut forest products. The Commissioner must be notified before any cutting under permit, site of road clearance is begun, and shall at least annually and upon completion of the cutting send out statements to permit holders. Empowers the Commissioner to institute such scaling and check scaling procedures as will protect the state's interests, assign specialists and perform other regulatory and supervisory functions. Repeals M.S. 1965, Sections 90.27 and 90.28, and Chapter 91.

Chap. 634 HF 1220 Expands the means whereby a petition may effect the formation of a watershed district if signed by either one-half the counties therein, or a county having one-half the population thereof, or a majority of the cities or villages, or 50 percent of the freehold residents. Provides for a means of changing the principal place of business of the watershed. Members of the board shall receive up to \$35 compensation. Raises the limit of assessed value of property from which revenue may be gained for the organization fund from \$20,000 to \$60,000. Raises levy for administrative fund to 2 mills or \$60,000, whichever is the lesser. Makes other minor changes in the Watershed Act.

Chap. 862 HF 1356 Authorizes the Commissioner of Conservation to mark canoe and boat routes on the Snake, Mississippi, Red Lake, Cannon, Des Moines, Crow Wing, St. Louis, Rum, Kettle, Cloquet, Root and Crow Rivers.

CONSERVATION (cont.)

Chap. 905 SF 1606	Provides for the partial reorganization of the Department of Conserva- tion through a consolidation of various functions within the scope of the authority given the Commissioner of Conservation. Extends and readjusts his powers and duties accordingly.
Chap. 876 HF 2078	Requires the registration of snowmobiles by the Commissioner of Conservation at a fee of \$8 for 3 years, with a transfer fee of \$1, and empowers the Commissioner to make such regulations regarding their use as he deems necessary. Violations punishable by fines of \$100 or imprisonment for 90 days.
Minerals and Ti	imber
Chap. 23 HF 79	Provides that if timber has been cut on a permit requiring cancellation due to the state's error, it may be sold at a single stumpage rate without formalities.
Chap. 24 HF 80	Raises to \$500 the value of timber sales which can be made by the Commissioner without formality, but not to persons holding 2 permits still in effect.
Chap. 25 HF 81	Provides that the Commissioner may, for a \$5 fee, permit the cutting of dead, downed or valueless trees for fuelwood, not to exceed 25 cords per year.
Chap. 26 HF 83	Repeals M.S. 1965, Sections 90.60, 90.61, 90.62 and 90.63, relating to timber identification.
Chap. 27 HF 84	Provides that all timber, buildings and equipment not removed from state land within 90 days after expiration of a timber permit shall become property of the state, subject to a 120 day extension which may be granted by the Commissioner.
Chap. 66 HF 78	Requires the Commissioner of Conservation to report annually to the Executive Council concerning timber matters. Empowers him to extend permits, not to exceed 10 years in total, on which there shall be a 6% charge on the unpaid balance.
Chap. 90 SF 263	Hardwood pulpwood may be removed from land before scaling, under certain circumstances.
Chap. 110 HF 85	Relates to forestry, making certain minor revisions in regard to timber auctions, and repealing laws regarding small auction timber sales.
Chap. 152 HF 1073	Provides for the amendment of iron ore or taconite leases to comply with the actual size of the tract of land involved.
Chap. 207 SF 332	Extensively revises M.S. 1965, Sections 88.20 and 88.21, relating to forestry railroads and forest fire prevention.
Chap. 269 HF 312	Relates to the sale of timber from tax-forfeited land, empowering the county board to designate scaling of landings other than that from which timber is being cut, and to agree with the purchaser and consumer to accept the latter's scale of cut products.

CONSERVATION (cont.)

Chap. 557 SF 2122 Declares public interest in the mining of copper, nickel and production of these metals, and authorizes the use of public property for such purposes, such authorization of grants, easements and leases to be given the Commissioner of Conservation for the depositing of waste products from mining and refining operations, as well as the flooding of state lands in connection with any permit for the use of public waters.

Chap. 566 SF 2123 Includes copper, copper-nickel and nickel mining, production or beneficiation among those projects to be regulated by permits granted from the Commissioner of Conservation.

Parks and Forests --

Chap. 100 HF 414 Authorizes the Commissioner of Administration, for the Commissioner of Conservation, to acquire by eminent domain land for Fort Snelling, Father Hennepin and Helmer Myre State Parks.

Chap. 146 HF 589 Relates to forestry and the administration of forest fire protection, making various definitional changes and minor additions and alterations in M.S. 1965, Chapter 88.

Chap. 514 HF 647 Relates to state forests, describing the boundaries thereof.

Chap. 787 HF 2647 Authorizes the creation of new state parks, acquisition of land, for Split Rock Lighthouse State Park, Hayes Lake State Park, additions to other state parks, and clarifies the boundaries of Jay Cooke State Park.

Soil and Water --

Chap. 16 HF 286 Changes the name of the State Soil Conservation Committee to the State Soil and Water Commission. Provides that certain members may designate their alternate representatives to the commission.

Chap. 39 HF 214 Authorizes soil conservation districts to procure insurance as provided in M.S., Section 466.13, Subd. 3.

Chap. 203 SF 1170 Empowers the Water Pollution Control Commission to waive the regulations governing it if necessary to act in compliance with the federal government's rules, regulations or programs in regard to classification of waters.

COUNTIES AND TOWNS

General --

Chap. 289 HF 1533

E.S. Chap. 23 SF 31	County authorities may draw on the "Forfeited Tax Sale Fund" to acquire and maintain equipment used exclusively for the maintenance and improvement of tax-forfeited lands.
Chap. 28 HF 197	Relates to publication of notice of lis pendens in actions to determine adverse claims to real estate, striking the requirement of publishing a copy of the notice of pending of action filed with the register of deeds.
Chap. 38 HF 82	Authorizes the appraiser to appraise odd sized government lots as well as usual tracts.
Chap. 40 SF 415	Strikes all fees for various types of recording and conveying instruments, leaving a uniform charge of \$1 per page, with a minimum of \$2.
Chap. 44 SF 401	Permits counties to establish change funds in various county offices, not to be used for disbursements.
Chap. 70 SF 336	Increases to 6% the interest which may be paid on county orders and warrants.
Chap. 78 SF 48	Permits county boards to set expense allowances for travel by members of the board and authorized agencies.
Chap. 99 HF 867	Changes various dates on which county treasurers must file delinquent personal property tax lists in district court, and on which a sheriff's sale may be instituted, and on which the sheriff's list of uncollected taxes shall be filed. Makes various minor deletions.
Chap. 124 SF 297	Provides that recording or filing of various legal instruments shall be done by the county register of deeds or registrar of titles without fee if such is done for the state, its agencies, or the benefited sub- division.
Chap. 183 HF 790	Provides that private bridges or culverts constructed as a part of any ditch system established by proceedings instituted before March 25, 1947, may be maintained as a part of the county system if the county board so elects.
Chap. 197 HF 782	Authorizes the creation of a county sheriff's contingency fund in amount not in excess of \$1,000.
Chap. 266 SF 1298	Provides that bridges hereafter constructed on town roads over rail- road tracks shall be at least 20 feet wide, with approaches at least 24 feet wide.
Chap. 282 SF 1295	Town and village assessors shall be appointed for indefinite terms, vacancies in village assessor's office to be filled by appointment by the village council or the county auditor if they fail to do so.

Extensively revises form and content of M.S. 1965, Chapter 412, relating to village government.

	COOL LIE TOWN CONTROL CONTROL
Chap. 329 SF 2152	Relates to the membership of cities, villages, boroughs, and counties in certain associations, authorizing membership in county and regional as well as state and national associations.
Chap. 364 HF 1838	Relates to letting of contracts by counties, providing for formal competitive bidding on contracts in excess of \$2,500.
Chap. 365 HF 1851	Relates to drainage ditches, providing for the obtaining of outlet rights for ditches outletting into an existing county or judicial ditch.
Chap. 372 HF 2351	Authorizes counties having a population of 50,000 or less to appropriate certain money for hospital purposes.
Chap. 374 HF 317	Relates to the Economic Opportunity Act, enabling local units of government to participate in programs thereunder.
Chap. 388 SF 1067	Relates to county officers, authorizing county boards to provide additional compensation to county officers who are assigned additional duties.
Chap. 409 SF 1482	Relates to counties, abolishing the board of auditors, transferring the functions thereof to the county board and authorizing the county board to employ accountancy assistance.
Chap. 528 HF 1609	Relates to collateral for the deposit of certain public funds, providing for approval of certain collateral by county treasurers.
Chap. 532 HF 1731	Relates to the publication of official proceedings of county boards, defining a newspaper that is produced in the county.
Chap. 543 HF 2195	Requires the investigation of any fires causing damage in excess of \$100 by city or village officials.
Chap. 544 HF 2222	Empowers county boards to specify the amount to be apportioned from the "suspense fund" to various other county funds.
Chap. 561 SF 1119	Legalizes mortgage foreclosure sales by advertisement made prior to May 1, 1966, assuming such to have been duly recorded at the time, and bars certain objections to such sales, relating to power of attorney, description of property, faulty form, etc.
Chap. 580 HF 1159	All in-lots shall be numbered beginning with the number one and continuing progressively through the block, and all blocks within a plat the same way. Consecutive lot or block numbering shall not be continued from one plat to another. All out-lots shall be designated by alphabetical order beginning with out-lot "A" in each plat. Monuments shall be at all angle and curve points and changes of direction. Any plat including land abutting on a lake or stream shall show a contour line designating the shore line, water elevation and survey date, as

well as the high water level, all elevations being referenced to a durable bench marker. Purposes of easements must be clearly stated on the plat. Any plat abutting a trunk highway must be submitted to the Commissioner of Highways for his approval and those abutting county highways to the county engineer, under certain procedures. Dispenses with recording procedures in M.S. 1965, Section 505.04.

	Control of the contro
Chap. 581 HF 1327	County boards designated as development areas under 7 USCA are empowered to enter agreements with the federal government pursuant to such program. Proceedings for improvements under this act instituted by petition may thereafter be conducted by a board as provided in M.S., Chapter 106, and a majority of landowners shall be required to validate such petition for improvements.
Chap. 585 HF 1608	Empowers county boards to appoint a county administrator, and delineates the scope of his authority and function. Such office may be dissolved at any time by the board.
Chap. 595 HF 273	Provides that special acts enacted pursuant to the Constitution, Article XI, Section 2, shall become effective without the approval of local units in certain instances.
Chap. 598 HF 1607	Provides that counties shall distribute cigarette tax revenues to their towns not having village powers, except those contained within a town which have already received distribution, and may retain those portions attributable to the population of unorganized territories within the county.
Chap. 616 HF 1124	County boards may authorize county officers to accept negotiable paper in payment of moneys due the county, state or subdivision thereof, and to issue receipts conditional upon the payment of the paper check, default of which shall void the recorded payment, reinstating the debt. Such will also apply to tax receipts.
Chap. 698 SF 1347	Where county boards are authorized to enact ordinances, such enactments shall be accomplished by the procedure as set forth herein. Notice of intention to enact shall be published, as shall the ordinance itself. Such ordinances may be penal in nature, penalties not to exceed those permitted for conviction of a misdemeanor.
Chap. 716 SF 427	Establishes 1960 federal census as measure of county population determining board's authority to set commissioner's salaries. New salaries shall not become effective until January 1 of next odd numbered calendar year. Repeals M.S. 1965, Sections 375.05 and 375.055, Subd. 2 and 7. Deletes various limits on salaries.
Chap. 718 SF 821	Enables county attorneys to appoint, with authorization of the county board, more than one assistant. Authorizes general raising of ceiling limits on salaries as set out in the act. Rephrases general regulations relating to establishment of compensation and budget of county attorneys.
Chap. 723 SF 1278	In consideration petitions for vacation of town roads or county highways, town boards shall determine whether lateral ditches are essential for drainage. If so, the town shall retain access to preserve them.
Chap. 763 HF 2456	Alters requirements and employment possibilities in relation to those engineers employed as county, city or village engineers;

engineers of any governmental agency.

such must be registered professionals. Civil service classifications may be allocated to cities, counties or villages to include

	COUNTIES AND TOWNS (cont.)
Chap. 830 HF 2121	Exempts the state or any county from the necessity of making advance payment of fees, costs or charges of any nature to any county or municipal official for services rendered.
Chap. 892 HF 359	Establishes a twin city metropolitan public transit area comprising Hennepin, Ramsey, Anoka, Washington, Dakota, Scott and Carver counties, and creates a metropolitan transit commission, prescribing its powers and duties. Provides for the regulation and control of public transit in the area, and for planning, engineering, construction and operation of public transit facilities and systems therein. Defines offenses relating to such purposes and prescribing penalties therefor.
Chap. 896 HF 1508	Creates a metropolitan council for the counties of Anoka, Carver, Dakota, Hennepin, Ramsey, Scott and Washington, represented by legislative districts, superceding the commission established under Chapter 473, to supervise, research and coordinate various programs and problems peculiar to the metropolitan area. Empowers the commission to tax the counties up to one-half mill.
Hennepin County	7 ~~
E.S. Chap. 24 SF 33	*Empowers the Hennepin county board to establish a county library system, levying a tax of up to six and one-half mills on property not already taxed for such purposes, and up to one mill on property which is. Enables the appointment of a county library board to work with the Minneapolis library board in contemplation of an amalgamation by 1973.
E.S. Chap. 27 SF 39	*Authorizes the county board of Hennepin county to set the salaries of all non-elected county officials.
E.S. Chap. 47 SF 68	*Authorizes Hennepin county to issue bonds up to \$16,000,000 to be used for certain specified purposes in specified maximum amounts.
E.S. Chap. 50 SF 12	Raises the jurisdictional limit of municipal court to \$6,000, and the number of municipal judges to sixteen. With certain exceptions, trial by jury shall be denied in charges of violations of ordinances, charter provisions, rules or regulations. If found guilty without jury, the defendant shall not suffer revocation of his driver's license.
Chap. 235 SF 1137	*Raises limit on Hennepin county contingency fund to \$5,000.
Chap. 245 SF 887	Abolishes the office of court commissioner of Hennepin county.
Chap. 250	Provides that no fees shall be charged by the clerk of Hennepin county

municipal court for business conducted there by governmental units and HF 1231 agencies of the state.

*Provides that moneys from the Hennepin County General Hospital imprest Chap. 280 HF 1870 fund may be used to pay private duty nurses and other special duty help.

Authorizes an exchange of state land in return for land in Hennepin Chap. 407 SF 1242 county.

Chap. 435 HF 1473	Authorizes the conveyance of certain lands in Hennepin county.
Chap. 441 HF 1665	*Authorizes the Hennepin county board to designate one of its funds to be an "emergency fund", to be expended in situations so implied
Chap. 484 HF 1999	Relates to filing fees in elections, providing that the filing fee for the office of judge of the municipal court of Hennepin county be \$100.
Chap. 486 HF 2102	Authorizes the conveyance of certain real property owned by the state to the American Red Cross for the use of Minneapolis and Hennepin county chapter.
Chap. 511 HF 592	*Exempts certain highways in Hennepin county from state imposed seasonal load limitations.
Chap. 512 HF 593	*Authorizes Hennepin county to record maps or plats showing the location of county highways and county state-aid highways and the right-of-way thereof.
Chap. 588 HF 1836	*Authorizes the Hennepin county commissioners to appoint a county administrator, prescribing his powers and duties.
Chap. 599 HF 1834	*Relates to the offices of auditor, treasurer and register of deeds in Hennepin county, transferring the functions of these offices to the county board of commissioners and authorizing the reorganization, reallocation, consolidation, or delegation of such functions.
Chap. 703 SF 1741	*Relates to the establishment of a pistol range in Hennepin county and the encouragement of marksmanship by permitting NRA pistol matches to be held there.
Chap. 719 SF 890	*Provides for the filling of vacancies on the Hennepin county board by election in certain circumstances.
Chap. 721 SF 1135	*Relates to the acquisition of property and the levy of taxes for the purposes of the Hennepin county park reserve district not to exceed .4 mills.
Chap. 734 SF 1746	Raises conciliation court jury costs to \$5 for a jury of six and \$10 for a jury of twelve. Raises filing fee to \$2. If the prevailing party, on appeal, is not the aggrieved party the court may allow the former to tax the latter up to \$25.
Chap. 735 SF 1790	Raises salaries of judges of municipal court to \$20,000.
Chap. 753 HF 2349	*Authorizes Hennepin county board to license and regulate the operation of ambulances, not to exceed \$25 for each ambulance and \$5 for each attendant, annually.

	COUNTIED AND TOWNS (CONC.)
Chap. 772 HF 2518	Clerk of court shall include name and position of officer prosecuting an offense in his memorandum to the county treasurer. Fines from cases prosecuted by the county attorney shall be retained by the county treasurer and credited to the general revenue fund. The county attorney shall have charge of the prosecution of violations triable in municipal court and shall prepare the complaint under circumstances as set forth in the act.
Chap. 774 HF 2553	*Authorizes the charging of a fee of \$5 for the issuance of special permits under M.S., Section 169.86, to be retained by the county and deposited in the road and bridge fund.
Chap. 779 HF 2612	*The clerk of the county board of education for any unorganized territory in Hennepin shall be the superintendent of the district wherein the majority of children from said unorganized district attend. The office of county superintendent of schools is abolished.
Chap. 796 HF 1606	*Raises county attorney's salary to \$20,000, clerk of district court to \$17,000, sheriff to \$14,000, county commissioners, \$12,000, and travel expenses not to exceed \$1,200 per member per year.
Chap. 801 HF 1667	*Medical examiners may receive compensation for autopsies in accordance with a fee schedule to be established by the county board of commissioners.
Chap. 822 HF 2028	Authorizes the joint establishment of area vocational-technical schools among certain school districts of Hennepin and the creation of joint school boards.
Chap. 826 HF 2069	Provides for various fees to be paid to the Hennepin county clerk of court for civil actions, copies and transcripts, filings, etc., to be paid in advance.
Chap. 842 HF 565	Provides that the Hennepin county conciliation court may be held in any of the places as provided in M.S., Section 488A.01, Subd. 9, Clause (a), as may be designated by a majority of the judges.
Chap. 861 HF 1290	*Abolishes the Hennepin county board of auditors, transferring their duties to the county board of commissioners.
Ramsey County	
Chap. 69 HF 720	*Empowers Ramsey county to merge its public libraries with those of the city of White Bear Lake under a single system.
Chap. 354 HF 1637	*Relates to Ramsey county, permitting it to insure against liability under the workmen's compensation act with respect to certain employees.
Chap. 454 HF 2218	*Relates to unclassified employees of Ramsey county, placing officers and employees of the county probation offices in this category until December 1969, except for clerks, typists, etc., and after that date, only the probation officer and three principal assistants.

date, only the probation officer and three principal assistants.

	· · · · ·
Chap. 497 SF 1382	Relates to the salaries of district court reporters in the second judicial district of Ramsey county, fixing the maximum at \$10,800.
Chap. 521 HF 1213	*Relates to the welfare board of Ramsey county and St. Paul, deleting the provision that the superintendent of the hospital appointed by the welfare board be a physician or surgeon.
Chap: 534 HF 1868	*Authorizes the improvement of Lake Owasso in Ramsey county by the county board.
Chap. 537 HF 1954	*Places the county engineer of Ramsey county in the unclassified employees category.
Chap. 546 HF 2309	*Authorizes the establishment of emergency ambulance service in Ramsey county, providing that no costs therefor shall be incurred by a city, village or town therein not wishing such service.
Chap. 750 HF 2288	*Raises limits on appropriations by the board for educational, artistic and scientific purposes to \$50,000.
Chap. 777 HF 2602	*County commissioners serving on the metropolitan mosquito control commission may receive mileage expenses therefrom.
Chap. 797 HF 1621	*Enables St. Paul city council, Ramsey county board, and governing bodies of any municipal subdivision governed herein to waive performance bonds on contracts for purchases of supplies and materials. Such shall be required on all bids for labor and material, or labor, if in excess of \$2,000. City council may designate parties to execute material and supply contracts.
St. Louis	County
Chap. 135 SF 677	*Empowers the St. Louis county board of health to expend a portion of its income to construct a building for its purposes.
Chap. 136 SF 671	*Empowers employees of St. Louis county to purchase surplus com- modities produced on or in St. Louis county institutions.
Chap. 138 SF 943	Authorizes the conveyance of certain state lands in St. Louis county.
Chap. 142 SF 680	*Includes school supervisors among unclassified employees of St. Louis county.
Chap. 143 SF 674	*Establishes minimum salaries for the county attorney, superintendent of schools, county auditor, sheriff, treasurer, clerk of district court, register of deeds and coroner of St. Louis county.
Chap. 188 HF 1410	*Provides for the transfer of funds from the St. Louis county hospital fund to the county general revenue fund and for their disposition.

Chap. 208 SF 676	*Relates to the custody of illegitimate children in St. Louis county, requiring prescribed payments to be made to the welfare board, commissioner of public welfare or probation officer.
Chap. 479 HF 1705	*Relates to the deposit of St. Louis county funds, repealing M.S. 1965, Section 118.15.
Chap. 501 SF 2243	*Provides for a levy of 2.5 mills in St. Louis county for use in connection with health purposes.
Chap. 531 HF 1706	*Authorizes the St. Louis county commissioners to contract for ambulance service in the county.
Chap. 563 SF 1513	*Relates to the purchasing agent of St. Louis county, regulating the procedure to be followed in accepting bids.
Chap. 594 SF 1474	*Extends to 1971 the limitation on special school tax levy in St. Louis county.
Chap. 621 HF 2273	*Authorizes the county board of St. Louis county to perform all the powers and duties of the county nursing home board.
Chap. 664 SF 2284	*Relates to the levy for the county work farm work in St. Louis county, raising it to a maximum of 3/4's of one mill.
Chap. 680 HF 1892	Fixes the salaries of the judge, referee and clerk of probate court in St. Louis county at \$18,500, \$3,750 and \$11,000, respectively.
Chap. 686 HF 1652	Authorizes the conveyance of certain lands in St. Louis county.
Chap. 749	Appropriates \$25,000 for the acquisition of a dam site near the junction of the Sturgeon and Shannon Rivers.
:	

^{*} These acts shall become effective only after approval by the governing body of the county and upon compliance with M.S. 645.021.

en de la companya de la co

A CONTRACT OF WAR A STATE OF THE STATE OF TH

CRIME AND CORRECTION

(See also Judiciary)

E.S. Chap. 7 SF 2	Gives the state the right of appeal in criminal prosecutions, from certain orders in defendants' favor, unless jeopardy has attached, and provides a procedure for such appeal. Attorney fees for the appeal shall be paid for the defendant by the county.
E.S. Chap. 15 SF 14	Makes trade secrets property subject to theft, defining such secrets and what shall constitute a theft thereof, and making same punishable by not more than ten years imprisonment and/or a fine of up to \$100,000.00.
Chap. 94 SF 505	Enacts an interstate compact providing for the mandatory dis- position of untried indictments, informations, or complaints which have been filed as detainers against inmates of Minnesota penal institutions by other party states and jurisdictions.
Chap. 178 HF 656	Clarifies certain penalties for convictions in crimes of theft.
Chap. 242 SF 688	Defines attempted suicide as disorderly conduct, imposing a sentence of up to three days.
Chap. 294 SF 1034	Provides for the mandatory disposition of detainers against one imprisoned if he so requests, and provides a procedure under which such shall be accomplished.
Chap. 333 HF 428	Relates to certain sex crimes, providing for commitment of sex offenders for presentence examination.
Chap. 334 MF 530	Relates to the state teletypewriter communications network, providing for the transfer of control thereof from the Commissioner of Administration to the Superintendent of the Bureau of Criminal Apprehension.
Chap. 336 NF 628	Provides for an exclusive post conviction remedy to challenge the legality of conviction of crime and sentence or other disposition thereof, but not replacing appellate relief or proceedings preparatory thereto.
Chap. 398 SF 656	Relates to the state reformatory for women changing its name to the Minnesota Correctional Institution for Women, providing that no female shall be imprisoned in the state prison and providing for the transfer of certain female offenders from other institu- tions to the Minnesota Correctional Institution for Women.
Chap. 399	Relates to persons convicted of crime and sentenced to imprison-

- 23 -

ment, authorizing the Commissioner of Corrections to accept such persons duly convicted and sentenced to imprisonment by courts of competent jurisdiction in other states for confinement in the state prison, the state reformatory for men or the state reformatory for women; providing for payment of the costs of such confinement; and authorizing the Commissioner of Corrections to contract with the U.S. attorney general for transfer to and confinement in federal correctional institutions certain inmates of the state.

SF 699

CRIME AND CORRECTION (cont.)

Chap. 408 SF 1369 Relates to the distribution of depressant or stimulant drugs, defining the same, making unlawful certain acts in connection therewith and providing penalties for the violation thereof.

Chap. 418 HF 409 Relates to persons convicted of crimes and confined in penal institutions, establishing a work release plan for such persons, extending the limits of their confinement, defining the powers and duties of the Commissioner of Corrections, the Adult Corrections Commission and the Youth Conservation Commission in relation thereto, creating a work release fund and appropriating money therefor.

Chap. 424 HF 804

Relates to persons confined in penal institutions, increasing their compensation for work performed.

Chap. 426 HF 930

Relates to the Adult Corrections Commission, providing that persons placed on probation shall be under the supervision of the Commissioner of Corrections and providing that the written order of the Commissioner of Corrections shall be sufficient to authorize any peace officer or state parole or probation agent to retake and place in actual custody any person on probation.

Chap. 507 HF 244 Relates to certain sex crimes, defining certain crimes, prohibiting certain acts and providing penalties therefor.

Chap. 574 HF 774

Certain selected boys shall be educated in the Minnesota Home School for Girls, now renamed "Minnesota Home School".

Chap. 717 SF 747 Youth Conservation Commission may transfer to the Adult Corrections Commission jurisdiction over those attaining majority and who commit a felony under certain circumstances or violate parole.

Chap 870 HF 142

Establishes within the attorney general's office the Minnesota Peace Officer Training Board, consisting of representatives of the various state law enforcement agencies, for the purpose of making recommendations regarding training schools and courses, minimum standards of recruitment, grading systems and other related matters. Requires a training course for peace officers.

Chap. 846 HF 704 Provides for a tab charge in lieu of a formal complaint for violations of criminal laws, unless requested by the person charged.

Chap. 883 SF 835 Empowers the Commissioner of Corrections to establish and operate additional industrial facilities at correctional institutions, for which he may withdraw up to \$150,000.00 from the state prison revolving fund. Proceeds from the sale of goods manufactured shall be placed in an industrial revolving fund of the particular institution, and up to \$50,000.00 per year may be transferred by the commissioner from one institution's fund to another's.

E.S. Chap. 52 SF 51

Empowers the Commissioner of Corrections to draw upon the imprest fund of his department to make emergency loans and to meet other emergencies.

EDUCATION

Elementary, Secondary and General Education --

- E.S. Chap. 14 Requires all pupils, teachers and visitors to wear eye guards while participating in or observing certain industrial education, physics and chemistry laboratory activities. Authorizes the purchase of such devices.
- E.S. Chap. 17 Raises the membership of the state board of education to nine SF 21 citizens, one from each congressional district, three of whom shall have served on a local board. Creates six year terms for all, beginning upon expiration of existing terms, and extends the terms of some present members.
- E.S. Chap. 25 Establishes a professional teaching practices commission of twelve members with at least five years experience in teaching, to develop a code of ethics regarding teaching practices, conduct, etc., to advise the state board of education and members of the profession, and to hear individual complaints as to violations of professional ethics. Appropriates \$10,000 for the first biennium.
- E.S. Chap. 31 Requires that apprentice barbers complete at least ten grades of an approved school, provides for a four year certificate of apprenticeship, not renewable. Schools of barbering must hold 1,500 hours of instruction to be completed within twelve months. Deletes the \$3 student permit fee.
- Chap. 77

 Affords veterans over 21 who would otherwise qualify for tuition free vocational training the opportunity to do so provided they entered the service before attaining majority, and apply within two years of their discharge, not including time as an in-patient in a hospital.
- Chap. 82 Requires completion of education through the tenth grade before SF 431 an exemption may be made, except that students of University of Minnesota Agricultural Schools at Crookston and Waseca may be excused between April 1 and October 1.
- Chap. 153 Empowers the Commissioner of Education to transfer money from the contingency account to projects requiring additional funds.
- Chap. 173 Clarifies provisions relating to the admission to kindergarten of children under 5 years of age, and to first grade of children under 6 years of age.
- Chap. 176 Authorizes school districts to join associations of vocational HF 473 schools if approved by a two thirds vote of the board.
- Chap. 394 Adopts an interstate compact for education and provides for the implementation of such compact.
- Chap. 495

 Relates to the consolidation of school districts, providing for the performance of certain duties of the county superintendent by the county auditor in the event of abolition of the office of county superintendent.

EDUCATION (cont.)

Chap. 496 SF 1373

Relates to the operation of recreational programs and facilities by certain organizations, eliminating certain requirements relating to recreational programs of school districts.

Chap. 583 HF 1427

Provides that school districts which have applied for additional state loans after January 1, 1965, or issue or have issued bonds other than refunding after January 1, 1967, shall compute their maximum effort debt service levy as 4 1/10 mills. Also appropriates to school bond fund all income derived from investments of such fund. Requires that districts agree to use a rate of 5½ mills for bonding other than refunding state loans, and to schedule maturity of such bond in accordance with M.S. 1965, Section 475.54, Subd. 2. School districts may issue bonds for wider purposes, including academic instruction. School districts must equalize the maturity levels of their bonds to be as nearly equal as possible over the next 30 years if they have outstanding state loans. Directs the state auditor to issue and sell school loan bonds in the maximum of \$2,800,000. No state loan shall be considered by any school district in computing their "net debt".

Chap. 626 HF 2542

Pupils residing on farms lying within two school districts may attend either but must have approval of commissioner to attend the one of which he is not a resident.

Chap. 633 HF 750

Teachers may join or abstain from organizations of teachers or labor unions, which are to be recognized by school boards as representing their members, and may deal with boards through councils made up proportionately of their memberships. An arbitration committee of three may be established by both interest groups to resolve problems.

Chap. 704 SF 1799

Empowers school districts to authorize removal of unauthorized vehicles parked on school district premises.

Chap. 713 SF 303

Increases compensation of members of school boards to \$15 per day maximum, not to exceed \$300 in any year.

Chap. 731 SF 1636

Makes continuously annual the procedure for computing additional aids to school districts. If under the method of computation used a district suffers a loss of more than 15 percent in assessed valuation subsequent increases shall be limited to 8 percent until the "controlled assessed valuation" and increasing auditor's valuation become equalized.

Chap. 761 HF 2442

Raises to 6 percent the interest rate which may be paid by districts on money borrowed to meet its lawful obligations.

Chap. 769 HF 2507

Establishes a comprehensive educational foundation aid program for fiscal years 1968-1969 and thereafter. Sets out maximum payments per pupil unit and provisions for determining and adjusting same.

HF 156

Chap. 833 Provides that all areas of the state except Fort Snelling shall be included in an independent or special school district by 1971, and establishes a procedure under which such shall be carried out.

EDUCATION (cont.)

Chap. 853 HF 961	Raises to \$4,400 the amount payable by the state to localities toward the salaries of persons employed in educating handicapped children.
Chap. 858 HF 1191	Prescribes certain health requirements and procedures relating thereto regarding the admission of newly enrolled students, and requiring immunization against measles unless dangerous to the childs health.
Chap. 890 SF 390	Redefines teachers probationary period, making such credit transferable between school districts. Once tenure is established, provides a procedure for dismissal, suspension and leave of absence, defining grounds therefor, and providing for a hearing pursuant to dismissal.
Chap. 894 HF 820	Establishes a state loan program administered by the liaison and facilities commission for higher education, to make or guarantee loans up to \$1,500 per year to resident students meeting the various eligibility requirements. Prescribes policies and procedures under which the program shall be operated.
Higher Educat	ion
Chap. 140 SF 611	Authorizes the state college board to issue additional revenue bonds not to exceed total principal of 13 million dollars, such to be used for acquiring, constructing, remodeling, completing and equipping various structures.
Chap. 241 SF 610	Authorizes the state college board to permit colleges to conduct book stores in college buildings and provide insurance for the inventory.
Chap. 615 HF 818	Changes the name of the liaison and facilities commission for higher education to the Minnesota higher education coordinating commission.
Chap. 668 SF 686	Authorizes the state college board to institute a doctors curriculum of studies and to award the appropriate degree for its completion. Directs the board to investigate the development of doctoral programs at state colleges, for which study \$25,000 is appropriated, report to be submitted to the legislature by December 1, 1968.
Chap. 866 HF 2317	Authorizes the Minnesota liaison and facilities commission for higher education to enter into interstate agreements to facilitate the use of higher education facilities, subject to the approval of the board of the particular college or university involved.
Chap. 871 HF 278	Provides scholarships of from \$200 to \$800 dollars to first year students at qualified institutions of higher learning, to be administered by the Minnesota liaison and facilities commission for higher education. Regulates the procedure, standards, etc., applicable thereto.

applicable thereto.

ELECTION LAWS

Chap. 31 SF 106	Authorizes town boards to designate precincts and polling places for the casting of ballots in town meetings.
Chap. 95 SF 524	Empowers electors, at their town meetings, to vote a tax to purchase and maintain a public dumping ground.
Chap. 98 SF 798	Requires that election boards meet on or before the third day following the general election, rather than within ten days.
Chap. 137 SF 797	Relates to elections, providing that nominating petitions shall first be filed with the secretary of state who shall then certify same to the county auditor, altering the procedure formerly used. Also provides that candidates for presidential electors may be nominated on or before primary election day.
Chap. 169 SF 906	Provides that M. S. 1965, Chapter 211, be known as the "Fair Campaign Practices Act".
Chap. 243 SF 799	Provides that consolidated primary election ballots shall be white, nonpartisan primary ballots yellow, and municipal primary ballots light green.
Chap. 264 SF 1048	Alters the boundaries of the twenty-first and fifty-seventh senatorial and representative districts.
Chap. 437 MF 1575	Relates to the use and regulation of electronic voting systems, providing for the use of such devices in primary elections, providing for the precinct identification of ballot cards, providing for the experimental use of such devices by the Minnesota Voting Machine Commission, and providing for the programing of the automatic tabulating equipment.
Chap. 444 HF 1747	Relates to state elections, authorizing a change in the time for opening the polls in certain municipalities.
Chap. 445 MF 1749	Relates to village elections, providing that the village clerk shall publish a notice stating the first and last dates on which affidavits of candidacy may be filed and providing for the rotation of the names of candidates on the ballots in all villages of over ten thousand inhabitants.
Chap. 446 MF 1750	Relates to elections, providing for financial reports of candidates and their personal campaign committees in certain municipalities.
Chap. 576	Provides for special notice on voting machines when a constitutional amendment or other proposition is to be voted on.
Chap. 760 MF 2437	Requires that paper ballots and boxes be readily available where machines are being used, in case of their failure.
Chap. 811 MF 1883	Provides for a uniform residence affidavit on absentee ballot requests and return envelopes and makes minor language revisions.

ELECTION LAWS (cont.)

en de la composition de la composition de la contraction de la composition de la composition de la composition La composition de la La composition de la

Chap. 852 HF 912 Enables the appointment of more than three election judges per polling places, and for the appointment of additional judges to count ballots. Any proposition to be voted on shall be stated on a separate ballot. Compensation for judges shall be determined by the election board. Changes the time limit for applying for an absentee ballot to not more than forty-five nor less than one day before the election. Makes minor procedural alterations. Requires a separate absentee ballot box, and the initialing of absentee ballots by the judges.

GENERAL LEGISLATION

Chap. 21 HF 482	action requiring notification to the commissioner.
Chap. 32 SF 145	Relates to prearranged funeral plans, contracts, trust funds, deposits of trust funds, making certain clarifications in terminology, and providing for injunctive relief as a remedy.
Chap. 91 SF 397	Defines firearm as any gun from which shot or a projectile is discharged by means of an explosive, gas, or compressed air.
Chap. 247 SF 1470	Relates to the solemnization of marriages among Hindus and Muslims, providing that such may be accomplished by one chosen by a local Hindu or Muslim association.
Chap. 220 HF 972	Extends right to dissect dead bodies to cases where authorized by next of kin for specified purpose, provided there is no dissent on the part of other next of kin.
Chap. 291 HF 1684	Designates the pink and white lady slipper as the official state flower.
Chap. 347 HF 1374	Relates to aeronautics and public corporations created in connection therewith, providing for the emergency purchase of equipment, supplies or materials not in excess of \$5,000 without the necessity for formal competitive bids.
Chap. 376 HF 1383	Relates to trusts and trustees, providing for the allocation of principal and income from certain investments.
Chap. 389 SF 1398	Relates to parking facilities for the physically handicapped, providing that the disability be permanent.
Chap. 466 HF 966	Relates to the issuance of worthless checks, providing that this section does apply to checks issued to a fund for employee benefits.
Chap. 469 HF 1219	Relates to port authorities and seaway port authorities, provid- ing for written notice to all members of the port authority of intention to consider the sale or transfer of property owned by the authority at a regular or special meeting of the authority.
Chap. 462 HF 280	Relates to public inspection of the records of proceedings of governing bodies, providing that votes on appropriations of money be recorded.
Chap. 490 HF 2406	Relates to cooperative associations validating against the objection of lack of timely notice certain annual meetings.
Chap. 508 HF 267	Relates to minors, regulating the termination of guardianship, providing that guardianship of a married ward as a minor only shall not affect the capacity of such ward to join in conveyances of real estate owned by his or her spouse.

Chap. 516 HF 853 Relates to the impounding of trespassing animals, providing that certain animals running at large may be impounded.

GENERAL LEGISLATION (cont.)

	(00101)
Chap. 535 HF 1904	Empowers port authorities to make capital improvements on lands held by it to be leased or sold in furtherance of developments, and to issue bonds to finance such construction and improvements.
Chap. 608 SF 1121	Deeds executed by trustees of religious corporations recorded before January 1, 1965 are validated though not approved by the congregation on record. Does not apply to actions now pending or those commenced within six months.
Chap. 623 HF 2462	Makes cemetery lots freely alienable, no longer requiring the consent of the governing body of the cemetery. The cemetery may charge a reasonable transfer fee, not to exceed \$15.
Chap. 791 HF 1495	Redefines "key system" airports as those used by large multi- engined or jet aircraft, secondary system as those to be used by single engine or light to medium multi-engined craft, and the landing strip system as those unattended, sod or hard sur- face for use of light craft. Raises the limit on amount com- missioner may pay for landing strip construction to \$30,000 and provides for the reimbursement of municipalities for expenses in acquiring sites up to \$10,000, if completed after June 1, 1967. Provides for a hangar construction revolving account, and part
Chap. 799 HF 1660	Enlarges definition of insect pests to include European and native elm bark beetles, to provide additional authority to control the spread of Dutch elm disease, authorizing a levy of up to four mills to defray the cost of combatting, not to exceed one dollar per person.
Chap. 835 HF 266	Exempts libraries, musical instruments, burial plots, miscellaneous household goods up to \$3,000 in value, farm equipment and stock up to \$5,000 in value, and other assorted items from attachment, garnishment or sale on final proceeds.
Ohan 055	Processor and analysis of the second and the second

Empowers veterinarians to place a lien on animals for services in excess of \$25, and empowers summary sale of any animal not claimed within ten days of completion of treatment.

Chap. 857 HF 1158

All lost or abandoned property found in any state buildings or on any state land, including highway right of ways, shall be placed in the custody of the Commissioner of Administration.

HEALTH AND WELFARE

E.S. Chap. 16 SF 17	Provides for medical assistance through state and county welfare agencies for the benefit of needy persons meeting the qualifications expressed within the act.
Chap. 34 SF 214	Includes among tuberculosis centers to which a patient may be confined tuberculosis units as the commissioner may designate in addition to the Anoka State Hospital.
E.S. Chap. 40 SF 50	Extensively revises, rephrases and clarifies provisions relating to workmen's compensation, regarding daily and weekly wages, commencement of payment of compensation, out of state employment; raises to \$60 the maximum weekly allowance for temporary total disability. Also alters permanent total disability provisions, as well as the deduction of previous payments from benefits if death occurs, limited to \$17,500. Also limits to \$60 per week compensation to dependents in the event of death.
Chap. 89 SF 257	Old age assistance shall be paid to a legal guardian, if appointed, or to an individual if the recipient has no guardian but is unable to manage his own interests.
Chap. 122 HF 374	Relates to authorization for non-emergency medical care, striking the requirement county welfare boards not pay for such unless previously authorized.
Chap. 126 SF 547	Provides that prepaid burial costs not in excess of \$500 shall not be included in evaluating the assets of old age assistance candidates.
Chap. 127 SF 548	Relates to aid to the disabled, making minor revisions and rephrasing regarding proof of disability.
Chap. 148 HF 971	Changes the name of the Minnesota Soldiers Home to the Minnesota Veterans Home.
Chap. 162 SF 283	Provides that applications for old age assistance may be made by persons acting in the applicant's behalf.
Chap. 163 SF 302	Provides that applications for aid to the disabled may be made by persons acting in the applicant's behalf.
Chap. 164 SF 315	Provides that applications for aid to the blind may be made by persons acting in behalf of the applicant.
Chap. 184 HF 797	Provides that moneys prepaid for funeral expenses not in excess of \$500 shall not be evaluated in determining assets for aid to the disabled.
Chap. 222 HF 995	Extends eligibility for benefits administered by Commissioner of Veterans Affairs to those participating in the Lebanon crisis, Berlin crisis, Quemoy and Matsu, Taiwan Straits, Cuban crisis, Congo, Laos, Dominican Republic and Vietnam, excepting those serving active training under the six months program.
Chap. 228 HF 829	Entitles nonprofit medical services to include optometric services among their benefits.

among their benefits.

HEALTH AND WELFARE (cont.)

Chap. 322 SF 816	Relates to maltreatment of minors, requiring reporting of suspected cases of child beating by medical authorities.
Chap. 386 SF 762	Relates to the care of patients at state hospitals, defining the words "resident patient", "outpatient" and "day-care" patient and providing that the cost of care of outpatients not exceed 50 percent of the total average per capita cost for resident patients.
Chap. 440 HF 1653	Relates to aid to the disabled, providing certain exemptions in determining need.
Chap. 638 HF 395	"Minnesota Hospitalization and Commitment Act". Establishes comprehensive plan of authorization and procedure for the hospitalization, commitment, treatment, discharge, after-care, etc., of inebriates, mentally ill and mentally deficient persons, under state supervision.
Chap. 653 SF 417	In determining financial eligibility of dependent children, the county agency shall exclude considerations of the earnings of children under 14 if casual and inconsequential; of the first \$80 per month of income earned by each dependent child, \$20 shall be disregarded plus half the balance, but not to exceed a total of \$150 in exemptions.
Chap. 694 SF 1126	Expands county powers to employ home health service personnel for such duties as may be necessary. "Expenses" under the section shall include costs of such, plus equipment necessary.
Chap. 794 HF 1568	Relates to the Gillette State Hospital, permitting physicians to receive the benefits of voluntary health insurance policies for services rendered. Such will be deposited in the now created medical education and research account for purposes implied. Creates an advisory commission to advise the administration of the fund.
Chap. 849 HF 828	Relates to assistance for the blind, raising the income limit to \$90 per month which will be disregarded in determining needs, and the personal property limits to \$2,000 for single persons and \$4,000 for married couples.
Chap. 856 HF 1099	Relates to employment security and provides that where benefits charged to an employers account are for the unemployment of 75 percent or more of the employees in a unit due to fire, flood, wind or an act of God, the employer may obtain a cancellation of benefits incurred without being subject to the 25 percent surcharge otherwise required.
Chap. 872 HF 501	Provides that every district and unorganized territory may provide special instructions and services for handicapped children of pre-school age.
Chap. 879 SF 418	Includes as "dependent children" those under age 19 in regular full time attendance at a high school, college, university or vocational or technical training program for the purpose of M.S. 1965, Sections 256.72 to 256.87 of the welfare statutes.

HEALTH AND WELFARE (cont.)

Chap. 885 SF 1744 Makes various deletions in M.S. 1965, Section 245.32, relating to the payment of welfare funds, especially directly to the vendor of medical supplies.

Chap. 888 SF 85 Raises the maximum levy rate to two mills for the purpose of maintaining community mental health service programs, removes the 55¢ per capita limit on grants-in-aid for such purposes, the limit on the county mill rate, and changes the limit on grants-in-aid to counties for such purposes to 75 percent of the total expense of the mental health program.

Chap. 889 SF 389 Relates to community health programs and limits to 50 percent of total cost state grants-in-aid for mortgages and other costs of buildings and facilities not constructed under federal programs provided such grants do not exceed 25 percent of total construction costs.

HIGHWAYS

General --

- E.S. Chap. 3 Requires that persons killed in auto accidents of age sixteen or over be examined by the coroner to determine the presence of alcohol or drugs, such information to be used only for statistical purposes without revealing the identity of the deceased.
- E.S. Chap. 9 Relates to advertising devices and other signs and structures along the interstate and trunk highway systems, making extensive amendments to existing relevant statutes, extending powers of Commissioner of Highways relevant to scenic easements, delineating the size of signs along highways; making other alterations.
- E.S. Chap. 11 Empowers the governor to convey to political subdivisions all or SF 19 part of rights of way of existing roads no longer part of the trunk highway system, for highway purposes.
- Chap. 12 Requires the Commissioner of Highways to investigate requests from local authorities to establish truck routes through their jurisdictions and if findings warrant, to designate the highways therein as truck routes.
- Chap. 61 Authorizes the Department of Highways to approve certain private driver's training schools for driver's education of those under eighteen.
- Chap. 86 Raises the amount to be credited to the highway safety account from fines and forfeited bail to \$30,000 monthly. Deletes necessity of flagmen at certain railroad crossings, substituting safety devices.
- Chap. 96 Provides for the use of decals on motor vehicles in lieu of painted letters.
- Chap. 104 Prohibits the dropping or hurling of any destructive or injurious HF 427 material or object at or on a vehicle on a highway.
- Chap. 167 Authorizes the Commissioner of Highways to draft plans for rest SF 767 areas and tourist information centers throughout the state.
- Chap. 205 Empowers the Highway Department to destroy records of financial responsibility suspensions resulting solely from cancellation of insurance policies if such record is no longer needed.
- Chap. 214

 Empowers the Commissioner of Highways to lease the airspace above and the subsurface below the right of way of any trunk highway, at a fair rental rate. Such lease shall constitute a separate interest in the land which shall be subject to a separate tax as are other rights therein.
- Chap. 231 Provides that when relocation of a utility facility is necessitated by a trunk highway project, the relocation work may be made a part of the state contract or let as a separate contract.

Chap. 232 SF 484	Raises to \$25,000.00 the cost of construction or maintenance contracts below which the Commissioner of Highways may make without calling for bids, provided two quotations are obtained by him to be kept on file for one year thereafter.
Chap. 233 SF 624	Empowers the Commissioner of Highways to enter into contracts with T. B. Walker Foundation Inc. for the moving, storage and protection of objects of art endangered by highway construction, provided such contract shall not exceed \$20,000.00.
Chap. 234 SF 715	Excludes from the safety responsibility act a driver for hire if not the owner of the vehicle.
Chap. 258 SF 768	Authorizes the construction of wayside rest room, shelter and attendant facilities along the trunk highway system excepting the interstate portions, not to exceed annual expenditures of \$500,000.00.
Chap. 320 SF 1851	Relates to county state-aid highways, providing that approval of a county state-aid highway relocation by the governing body of a municipality transfers jurisdiction to that municipality.
Chap. 335 HF 538	Relates to certain roads included in the county state-aid highway system, providing access to state parks.
Chap. 421 HF 627	Adds a new route to the trunk highway system.
Chap. 436 HF 1476	Relates to the vacation and reversion of trunk highways, providing for the reversion to the county or another road authority of vacated temporary state trunk highway portions.
Chap. 443 HF 1686	Relates to highway safety, providing for the administration of the state highway safety program by the governor, authorizing receipt and disbursement of federal moneys therefor by the governor and authorizing participation of local governments therein.
Chap. 491 SF 295	Relates to the powers of the Commissioner of Highways, extending the authorization of certain powers.
Chap. 509 HF 292	Relates to highways and highway structures, providing that any person who willfully or negligently damages any highway or highway structure shall be liable for the amount thereof.
Chap. 536 HF 1917	Empowers the Commissioner of Administration to grant easements on lands not within the jurisdiction of the Commissioner of Conservation, or land obtained for highway purposes, for the use of public utility transmission lines, cables, conduits, gas mains, pipe lines, etc., such easement to be revocable by notice should the use later

interfere with the public interest, and to be subject to the sale or lease of the property, but not revoked thereby. The commissioner shall obtain the approval of the departmental head having jurisdiction over the subject property, and the granting of the easement shall take a form prescribed by the Attorney General, and be granted

under such terms as the commissioner shall deem advisable.

Chap. 659 SF 1775	The Commissioner of Highways may make agreements with govern- mental agencies and authorities for limited use of land owned as interstate or trunk highway right of way, which use will be for highway purposes but not for erection of permanent buildings.
Chap. 790 HF 1475	Highway land interests acquired in excess of highway needs may be conveyed and quitclaimed to any political subdivision or agency of the state, upon such terms as agreed between the subdivision and the commissioner.
Chap. 873 HF 562	Authorizes the issuance of Minnesota trunk highway bonds at the request of the Commissioner of Highways, not to exceed an aggregate principal amount of \$100 million, not more than \$20 million to be used in any single fiscal year.
Motor Vehicle	and Traffic Regulations
Chap. 13 HF 163	Extends use of metal studded snow tires to 1969, and requires that they be removed by May 1 each year.
Chap. 46 SF 247	Special license plates for radio operators may also be issued if the vehicle is jointly owned by an operator, with a limit of two vehicles to be so licensed for any operator.
Chap. 55 HF. 174	Defines term "passenger automobile" to include station wagons for the purposes of M.S. 1965, Section 168.101.
Chap. 56 SF 144	Includes busses owned and operated by state hospitals, institutions for the mentally ill, retarded or epileptic, among vehicles exempted from licensing fees.
Chap. 62 SF 339	Provides that all traffic and motor violation fines collected by justices of the peace be remitted to the county auditor before the tenth day after the last day of the month.
Chap. 87 SF 82	Repeals the section enabling issuance of motor bike licenses to fifteen year olds.
Chap. 160 SF 113	Changes from five to three years the period after which the commissioner may cancel motorists financial responsibility bonds if no violations have occurred.
Chap. 190 HF 1618	Relates to traffic regulations, providing that a bus, not in excess of eight and one-half feet in width may operate between the separated facilities of a college or university under certain circumstances.
Chap. 215 SF 1344	Extends footage limits on tractor-trailer rigs to fifty-five feet, no single trailer being more than forty feet in length, except for livestock, automobile and boat transport trailers, which may be forty-five feet in length.

Chap. 218	Requires school buses transporting children on highways to be lighted from one-half hour before sunrise to one-half hour after
HF 643	sunset in addition to normal lighting requirements.
Chap. 262 SF 712	Relates to the issuance of permits to use oversize and overweight vehicles, providing for a fee of \$5.00 for each except a seasonal transportation permit for construction machinery, which shall be \$25.00.
Chap. 268 HF 290	Provides that emergency vehicles escorting overweight or oversize vehicles need not sound their sirens, but must use their red lights.
Chap. 271 HF 999	Provides that the length limitation on tractor-trailer combinations shall not apply to loads of pole length pulpwood.
Chap. 272 HF 1180	Raises to fifteen hundred pounds the weight below which semi-trailers need not be equipped with brakes.
Chap. 281 HF 1935	Provides that no person may drive a vehicle within fifty feet of the driveway entrance to any fire station while fire apparatus is being driven and into the fire station, unless such person is on official business.
Chap. 283 HF 24	Relates to intoxication, providing that evidence of .l percent or more by weight of alcohol in a persons blood shall be prima facie evidence of intoxication.
Chap. 284 HF 25	Provides that one may refuse to take a blood test for intoxication and elect to take either a breath or urine test. Refusal shall be permitted if blood or urine tests are not available.
Chap. 309 HF 378	Relates to highway traffic regulations, requiring warning signs on certain slow moving vehicles.
Chap. 339 HF 806	Relates to the giving of proof of financial responsibility by owners and drivers of motor vehicles, providing that a discharge in bankruptcy does not relieve an individual from the requirements of this law.
Chap. 380 SF 115	Relates to the giving of proof of financial responsibility by owners and drivers of motor vehicles, allowing the Commissioner of Highways ninety days after the date of receipt of a motor vehicle accident report to invoke the provisions of this act.
Chap. 383 SF 383	Relates to highway traffic regulations, requiring any motor vehicle towing a house trailer at night to be equipped with certain safety equipment and providing instructions for the use thereof.
Chap. 385 SF 555	Relates to driver's licenses, defining the word "license".

	Chap. 397 SF 409		Relates to the giving of proof of financial responsibility by owners and drivers of motor vehicles, providing that in case of an accident the consent operator of a motor vehicle is deemed to be the agent of the owner of the vehicle.
	Chap. 464 HF 489	٠.	Relates to motor vehicle number plates, authorizing the registrar of motor vehicles to determine the size and form of such plates and designating the number of plates to be displayed.
	Chap. 467 MF 1060		Relates to highway traffic regulations, providing seasonal maximum limits for certain roads.
•.	Chap. 500 SF 1852		Relates to highway traffic regulations, requiring school bus drivers to indicate his intention to stop to receive or discharge children by actuating the flashing red signals.
	Chap. 515 HF 808		Relates to motor vehicle registration and taxation, exempting certain vehicles owned by military personnel.
	Chap. 524 MF 1400	.•	Relates to highway traffic safety, providing for the receipt by the Commissioner of Highways of information on persons receiving benefits for blindness.
	Chap. 569 HF 100		Provides that the penalties and prohibitions relating to operation of motor vehicles while under the influence of alcoholic beverages shall apply to the operation of any vehicle upon the ice of a lake, stream or river, including boundary waters.
	Chap. 738 SF 2237		The outside width limit on farm tractors is raised to twelve feet.
	Chap. 839 MF 394	, .	Includes those adjudged legally incompetent by reason of mental illness, deficiency or inebriation not restored to capacity as among persons not eligible to receive driver's licenses. Makes other minor revisions and deletions.

JUDICIARY

Chap. 9 HF 97	Provides that a party whose property has been garnished and has given a surety bond may be allowed the cost of premium as a disbursement, provided certain circumstances are met.
E.S. Chap. 19 SF 23	In counties of under 100,000, jurors shall be selected by jury commissions comprised of the clerk of court, chairman of the county board, and a resident appointed by the chief judge. The commission shall meet in January and select 72 grand jurors and one petit juror for each 100 residents, with a minimum of 150. Makes other procedural revisions.
E.S. Chap. 20 SF 24	Includes newly provided for jury commission members among those who shall not be tried before a jury drawn from a list of his comprising. Also in such cases the sheriff, rather than the clerk of court, shall draw from the list prepared.
E.S. Chap. 22 SF 26	Provides for the addition of one judge in Ramsey county and two judges in Hennepin county.
Chap. 29 HF 198	Relates to the notice of lis pendens in actions for partition of real estate, striking the necessity for publication of notice of the action and the summons.
E.S. Chap. 41 SF 52	Parents shall be jointly and severably liable for the willful or malicious torts of their children under age 18, up to \$100 in damages.
Chap. 45 SF 469	Provides for change of venue in juvenile court proceedings where petitioner has changed county of residence. Provides a procedure under which such may be accomplished.
E.S. Chap. 54 SF 59	Increases the salaries of all probate judges in varying amounts.
Chap. 75 HF 323	Empowers attorneys of record in juvenile court proceedings to inspect any reports or social histories used by the court in connection with the case.
Chap. 115 SF 574	When a probate judge's term would expire within three years of his eligibility for retirement, his term may be extended by the governor until that time.
Chap. 121 HF 293	Entitles the petitioner in eminent domain proceedings to tender part payment of a judgement pending resolution of an appeal, to be deposited with the clerk of district court if respondent refuses to accept such payment.
Chap. 128 SF 646	Raises various copying fees to be charged by probate courts to \$1 per page, 50 cents per half page and 50 cents for each certificate.
Chap. 158 SF 376	Provides for the survival of causes of action based upon strict liability, statutory liability or breach of warranty of a decedent after the death of the person against whom it existed.

JUDICIARY (cont.)

Chap. 177 HF 516	Raises the jurisdictional limits on ownership claims in conciliation courts to \$250.
Chap. 202 SF 1092	Authorizes the creation of conciliation courts in villages of the state.
Chap. 317 SF 725	Relates to probate courts, judges and procedures, providing that written decisions be filed within 90 days, providing for an annual rule-making meeting, and providing for salaries of clerks and employees.
Chap. 382 SF 205	Relates to the compensation and allowance for widows of district and supreme court judges, reducing from five to three years the period of marriage required before death or retirement.
Chap. 427 HF 977	Relates to service of process upon non-resident individuals, pro- viding that personal jurisdiction over certain non-residents may be obtained by personal service outside this state.
Chap. 428 HF 1107	Relates to foreclosures of mortgages, providing for the perpetua- tion of evidence of sale by an affidavit setting forth the fact of service of notice of sale in accordance with the Federal Tax Lien Act of 1966.
Chap. 461 HF 96	Relates to the Minnesota Reciprocal Enforcement of Support Act, providing certain inter-county procedures for cases when both the obligor and an obligee are in this state but in different counties.
Chap. 465 HF 927	Relates to the probate code, providing for summary proceedings under certain conditions.
Chap. 497 SF 1382	Authorizes the chief judge of the district court for the second judicial district to establish the salary of court reporters in that district at not more than \$10,800 per year.
Chap. 506 HF 47	Relates to marriage, authorizing the court commissioner or district court judge to consent to certain marriages in the absence of the juvenile court judge.
Chap. 518 HF 1029	Relates to the method of summoning grand juries, eliminating certain notice requirements.
Chap. 570 HF 288	Makes punishable the detention of one's own child outside the state with the intent to deny another's rights under an existing court order.
Chap. 6 1 4 SF 2346	Amends Laws 1967, Chapter 248, such that Subd. 1 applies only to mortgage foreclosure proceedings commenced on or before July 1, 1967.
Chap. 640 HF 1405	A dentist cannot testify without his patient's consent.

JUDICIARY (cont.)

Chap. 727 SF 1436	On or before the second Monday in June of each year the judge of the district court may set the salaries of court reporters for that year, not to exceed \$10,000. Does not apply procedurally to second and fourth districts.
Chap. 766 HF 2474	Makes Tuesday of various months the day commencing the general terms of the courts within the fifth judicial district.
Chap. 840 HF 485	Provides for the addition of two judges within the tenth judicial district of the state.

MUNICIPALITIES

E.S. Chap. 33 SF 4	Makes certain changes in the procedure for selecting city charter commissions, clarifying certain terms, shifting certain duties. Provides for amendment by ordinance as an alternative, requiring unanimous vote of the council, and petition for referendum by two per cent of the registered voters, or two thousand of them, whichever is less.
E.S. Chap. 42 SF 54	Empowers the governing bodies of cities of the second, third and fourth classes to fix their own salaries and the salary of the chief elected executive officer of the city.
Chap. 48 SF 400	Relates to reporting of certain obligations by municipalities, clarifying terms.
Chap. 57 SF 448	Relates to making local improvements, modifying the majority required to order improvement by providing that if the mayor of the municipality is a non-voting member he is not a member for determining the four-fifths majority required.
Chap. 58 MF 217	Authorizes state political subdivisions to provide for emergency interim succession of their various key officials in the event of attack.
E.S. Chap. 58 MF 75	Authorizes cities, villages, boroughs and towns to record maps or plats showing information relevant to the location of streets and the right of way thereof; provides procedures and fees for gaining copies, as well as fees to be paid the county registrars of titles and of deeds, to be \$10.00 for such filings, and \$5.00 respectively.
Chap. 84 SF 95	Raises the limit on city advertising expenditures to \$5,000.00 per year.
Chap. 85 SF 264	Moneys received by municipalities under the state-aid street system program may be used to maintain sidewalks.
Chap. 201 SF 1025	Provides that cities may pay up to seventy-five per cent of the total damages and costs of paving, curbs, or curbs and gutters out of the city's general funds.
Chap. 288 HF 1510	Relates toperking facilities, provides that in making special assessments governing bodies may assess properties in accommance with the benefit received by the facility.
Chap. 295 SF 1225	Provides for the sale of property unclaimed for three months by municipalities.
Chap. 297 HF 534	The Municipal Industrial Development Act. Authorizes municipalities and agencies thereof to provide and lease facilities to industries, to issue bonds to acquire such facilities and to mortgage them and

appropriate, pledge and assign lease rentals for the payment of such

MUNICIPALITIES (cont.)

Chap. 370 HF 2047	Relates to municipal fire department relief associations, changing the effective date for receipt of certain tax money.
Chap. 324 SF 1033	Relates to hazardous buildings, defining the word owner and authoria- ing any municipality to remove or raze any hazardous building with the consent of the owners and charge the costs to the owners.
Chap. 331 MF 211	Relates to cities organized under Laws 1895, Chapter 8, providing for the combination of the offices of clerk and treasurer, authorizing four year terms for aldermen, and increasing the size of a contract which can be let without competitive formal bidding.
Chap. 481 HF 1926	Relates to municipal obligations, providing for the publication of notice of redemption thereof in certain periodicals and defining what uses of the proceeds of such obligations are authorized uses.
Chap. 489 HF 2379	Relates to municipalities and the adoption of statutes, rules and regulations by reference.
Chap. 551 SF 1272	Provides that the Metropolitan Mosquito Commission shall meet on the first Thursday after the first Monday in January to select of- ficers and transact other organizational business. No contract for purchase exceeding \$2,500.00 shall be made by the commission with- out opening for bids, unless an emergency purchase exceeding \$2,500.00
	is deemed necessary. Tax levies for these purposes shall be based on the last decennial or special federal census. No county shall terminate its participation without giving the commission twelve months notice. Should a district be dissolved the equipment shall be sold and the proceeds divided among the member counties.
Chap. 559 SF 603	Provides for the amendment by ordinance of city charters in cities of the fourth class having a home rule charter, without submission to the charter commission, to be adopted by four-fifths vote, of the city council and submitted to popular vote for approval.
Chap. 562 SF 1387	Enables cities of the fourth class to levy up to one mill on all property taxable, for the purpose of raising advertising funds, not to exceed two thousand in total for any year. Such fund may be used in cooperation with advertising efforts of other communities. Such tax, once approved by popular vote, may be continued indefinitely without being reapproved.
Chap. 603 SF 739	Requires the fluoridation of municipal water supplies by the governing bodies thereof, as regulated by the State Board of Health, to be accomplished by January 1, 1970.
Chap. 710 SF 25	Establishes the uniform municipal election day as the first Tuesday after the first Monday of November in odd numbered years, adoption of which is optional.
Chap. 724 SF 1305	All municipalities in which not less than eight hundred votes were cast in the last general election in which any polling place is situated within fifteen miles of the limits of a city of the first class shall maintain a permanent registration system.

class shall maintain a permanent registration system.

MUNICIPALITIES (cont.)

Chap. 725 SF 1322 Empowers any city, village or borough operating a public recreation system to acquire, by lease or sale, land, buildings and equipment, and to issue bonds to cover the cost of such under regulations as set forth herein.

Chap. 908 SF 373

Raises the bond limit to \$125,000,000.00 for purposes relating to municipal airports. Properties leased by private parties or firms from the metropolitan airports commission are not exempted from assessments or taxes.

MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class

General --

Chap. 144 HF 274 Provides that property owned by a city of the first class may be assessed by the city council, either as if it were privately owned or as a measure of the benefit received, and taxes may be levied accordingly, including taxation for the park board.

Chap. 171 SF 1262 Relates to elections, raising the filing fee in cities of the first class to \$20.

Chap. 226 HF 1494 Provides that unclaimed vehicles in the possession of cities of the first class may be sold should the owner, after being notified, fail to reclaim it. If appearing within six months of the sale, the owner may collect the proceeds less costs.

Chap. 552 SF 1273 Authorizes the investment by retirement boards of cities of the first class in common stocks of domestic corporations which have paid dividends for five years preceding the date of investment, provided that the corporation's aggregate earnings has been at least equal to the aggregate cash dividends for that period. No investment shall be made by the board in any corporation if the total amount so invested exceeds 30 percent of the assets of the fund or if the total common and preferred stock investment in any one corporation exceeds, in amount one-half of one percent of the assets of the fund or in number of shares, one percent of the outstanding shares of the corporation.

Chap. 553 HF 1274 Private voters serving on retirement boards of cities of the first class shall be chosen by employees as defined in this chapter, and employees are authorized to form an association of contributors to the retirement fund, their employers being authorized to make payroll deductions for the payment of dues to such association.

Chap. 554 SF 1276 The income from investments made from the accumulated funds in possession of retirement boards shall be proportionately distributed to the contributors rather than only the interest earned on such funds up to and including a maximum of four percent of accumulated salary deductions.

Chap. 722 SF 1275 Relates to retirement allowances for employees of cities of first class. Persons serving 15 years as contributing members who then become an employee or elected or appointed official of a county containing a city having a retirement program may elect to retain his membership in the fund as set out in M.S. 1965, Section 422.09, or take the retirement benefits due him upon separation. Includes as possible beneficiaries surviving single children under 22 in full time attendance at an accredited school, college or university. Raises monthly payments to \$100 per month for widows and \$65 per month for children, not exceeding \$300 for the family. A surviving widow under 62 without children shall have her payments suspended until she attains 62, unless disabled, or eligible for other exceptions. Provides a "formula pension and annuity" for those meeting certain requirements.

MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class (cont.)

Chap. 762 HF 2446	Makes extensive deletions relating to firemen's relief associations in cities of the first class, especially regarding the surcharge on premiums to restore deficiencies in special funds.		
Duluth			
Chap. 224 HF 1369	Forbids the use of the trademark "portorama" by anyone not authorized by the Duluth Jaycees, violations constituting a mis-demeanor. Threatened use may be enjoined.		
Chap. 406 SF 1001	*Authorizes the issuance of an additional license for the sale of liquor at the Duluth arena-auditorium.		
Chap. 432 HF 1390	*Authorizes the governing body of the city of Duluth to submit to the electors of such city for approval or disapproval ordinances providing for the collection and enforcement of wheelage taxes upon motor vehicles using the public highways of the city of Duluth.		
	Bullett.		
Chap. 651 HF 2576	Fixes the compensation of the special judge of the municipal court in Duluth at \$75 per day.		
Chap. 732 SF 1657	*Relates to the firemen's relief association in the city of Duluth, authorizing other sources of revenue from no more than four percent of monthly salary of a first grade fireman.		
Chap. 776 HF 2591	*Authorizes the Duluth city council to transfer by ordinance certain moneys from the gas division account of the public utility fund to the general fund.		
Chap. 780 HF 2613	Revises the procedure for selecting jurors for the Duluth municipal court.		
Minneapolis -			
E.S. Chap. 34 SF 13	*Provides for the transfer of the current expense, streets, public welfare, civil service and civil defense funds of Minneapolis into one major general fund, and a consolidation of relevant levies into one levy for the fund, not to exceed 35 mills.		
Chap. 189 HF 1519	*Authorizes the Minneapolis city council to appoint a city co- ordinator.		
Chap. 477 HF 1493	*Relates to the city of Minneapolis, providing for the adjustment of assessments against benefited property.		
Chap. 480 *Relates to the library board of the city of Minneapolis, enlarg ing the board's authority to invest certain funds received as gifts.			
Chap. 540 HF 2118	*Limits the power formerly held by first class cities to assess abutting property for the costs of trimming trees along streets, avenues and alleys, to Minneapolis, in an amount not to exceed 25 cents per front foot.		
Chap. 669	*Relates to motor vehicle parking facilities in the city of		
SF 2069	Minneapolis.		

LEGISLATIVE REFERENCE LIBRARY STATE OF MINNESOTA

MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class (cont.)

• ,				
Chap. 743 HF 2149	The second second contract of the contract of			
Chap. 757 HF 2414	*Fixes the salaries of Minneapolis aldermen at \$12,000 and the mayor's at \$18,500. After 1969 council may set council salaries at \$13,000.			
Chap. 819 HF 1971	*Includes children under 22 who are full-time single students among those entitled to pension payments under the firemen's relief fund			
Chap. 820 HF 2004	*Includes children who are single full-time students among those entitled to pension payments under the policemen's pension fund program.			
Chap. 824 HF 2051	*Provides for a tax levy of three mills in Minneapolis for the fire men's relief association and increases the firemen's rate of contribution to $5\frac{1}{2}$ percent.			
Chap. 825 HF 2056	*Provides for a tax levy of four mills for the policemen's pension fund in Minneapolis and a contribution rate of 6 percent.			
St. Paul				
Chap. 185 HF 1211	*Provides that the statutes empowering St. Paul to insure against liability for the torts of its personnel shall not be effective until approved by the county board.			
Chap. 442 HF 1670	*Relates to local improvements and special assessments of the ci of St. Paul, permitting said city to exercise the powers and pr cedures provided by M.S. 1965, Chapter 429.			
Chap. 459 HF 2249	the same of the sa			
Chap. 460 HF 2319	*Relates to the city of St. Paul, authorizing a capital improve- ments program.			
Chap. 471 HF 1297	Relates to the selection of jurors for the municipal court of the city of St. Paul, providing for court rules on selection.			
Chap. 472 HF 1298	*Relates to the city of St. Paul, authorizing the city council to provide for residence requirements of city employees.			
Chap. 473 HF 1299	*Provides for certain payments to the city of St. Paul by the Ramsey county welfare board for the city's prosecution of certain violations of law.			
Chap. 487 HF 2239	*Relates to the city of St. Paul, providing that the commissioner of public safety and the city council be divested of certain duties relating to the operation of a police ambulance.			

duties relating to the operation of a police ambulance.

MUNICIPALITIES - Cities of the First Class (cont.)

Chap. 488 HF 2240	*Relates to the city of St. Paul, providing for a tax the proceeds of which are to be used to meet severance pay obligations.
Chap. 499 SF 1835	*Relates to the city of St. Paul, authorizing said city to issue its general obligation bonds for certain urban renewal development purposes.
Chap. 505 HF 1825	*Relates to the city of St. Paul, the village of Maplewood and Ramsey county, authorizing the governing bodies of said governmental units to enter into a cooperative agreement or agreements with each other for the purpose of constructing and operating storm water sewer facilities; ratifying an agreement previously entered into by said governmental units; providing for the financing of such storm water sewer facilities; authorizing the issuance of bonds in connection therewith and permitting the establishment and assessment of drainage districts.
Chap. 529 HF 1628	*Relates to the city of St. Paul, authorizing the city to make certain payments to the surviving spouse of a deceased employee.
Chap. 636 SF 2128	*Fixes the salary of the mayor of St. Paul at \$15,200, the comptroller at \$14,500 and the councilmen at \$14,000.
Chap. 682 HF 2285	*Provides for delayed assessment of improvements to residential real estate in the city of St. Paul.
Chap. 708 SF 2176	*Relates to the St. Paul firemen's relief association, raising the mill levy for such purpose to two and one-half mills, and making certain deletions in relevant sections.
Chap. 747 HF 2207	Raises jurisdictional limits of St. Paul conciliation court to \$6,000. The chief judge of the court shall be elected by the judges. Raises judges salaries to \$18,000, clerk's to \$13,000 and miscellaneous fees paid by the parties.
Chap. 810 HF 1817	*Repeals Laws 1963, Chapter 851, Section 2, as amended in 1965. Funds appropriated by St. Paul for insurance benefits for retired officers and employees of the city may be used for such purposes pursuant to M.S. 1965, Section 471.61.

^{*} These acts shall become effective only after approval by the governing body of the city and upon compliance with M.S. 645.021.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS

- Chap. 3 Provides that accumulated deductions for the teachers retirement fund be computed to include those from July 1, 1957, to the date of retirement, plus interest, plus twenty per cent of that sum. Extends to 1968 the period in which members may pay in for credit. Makes miscellaneous deletions.
- E.S. Chap. 6 Relates to the Teachers Retirement Association, providing that one attaining the age of sixty-five with less than ten years of service shall receive a refundment in an amount equal to his accumulated deductions, plus interests, rather than the defined retirement annuity, deleted from the section. After accepting a refund, a former member must acquire three years service credit rather than five, and repayments shall include four per cent interest from the date of withdrawal.
- E.S. Chap. 26 Includes full time single students between eighteen and twenty-one years of age within the definition of dependent children for the purposes of the public employees retirement fund, as expressed in M.S. 1965, Section 353.01, Subd. 15.
- E.S. Chap. 37 Relates to public employees retirement and deletes certain provisions relevant to part-time employees. Also excepts full time students who are enrolled and attending classes at an accredited school, college or university. Makes certain changes regarding the accrual of benefits after disability, clarifies the rights of surviving spouse and dependent children.
- E.S. Chap. 38 Extensively revises provisions relating to judicial pensions, including membership in other pension retirement funds, spouse's pensions, surviving spouses, and the retirement account.
- E.S. Chap 53 Rephrases and clarifies certain sections of the public employees retirement association provisions, and extends or alters various dates of effectiveness.
- E.S. Chap. 57 Extensively revises many sections relating to the state employees retirement association, clarifying, altering and deleting various provisions, and changing the name to the Minnesota state retirement system.
- E.S. Chap. 59

 Revises certain sections of the public employees retirement fund, making extensive additions to sections relating to the payment of employer's contributions, establishing guidelines for the amount of levy to be made to meet demands of contributions, establishing dates on which such are due, and interest rates thereon.
- Chap. 150

 Provides that one having been a district court reporter continuously since 1925 and a paying member of the public employees retirement association, and who is now over seventy-five years of age may resign from the fund and receive a refund of his contributions.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (cont.)

of a patrolman under certain circumstances.

Relates to highway patrolmen's retirement association, lowering the payments into the fund to seven percent of salary. Provides that the

widow of a patrolman over fifty-five, who elects to receive a joint and survivor annuity, shall receive the same for her natural life upon his death. Lowers to \$175.00 per month the maximum benefit for any number of children. Provides for \$75.00 per month to the widow

Chap. 244

SF 804

Chap. 249 HF 1195	Requires the consideration of additional factors in actuarial valuations made in connection with certain public retirement and pension funds. Prescribes various forms to be used.			
Chap. 396 SF 262	Relates to the state police officers retirement fund, defining certain terms, providing for membership in and contributions to the fund, providing for benefits and annuities from the fund, and establishing procedures therefor.			
Chap. 549 SF 252	Provides for a permanent public retirement commission to investigate the subject as to state level plans and programs, to make recommendations regarding such programs and issue a biennial report to the legislature, such commission to consist of five senators and five representatives serving terms of two years. Provides for office space, staff and inter-departmental cooperation, and an annual appropriation of \$25,000.00 for expenses of operation.			
Chap. 571 HF 346	Deletes the provision limiting the income level from which deductions can be made for public retirement of state employees, effective June 30, 1967.			
Chap. 604 SF 97	Provides that if a member attained an age of fifty-five with not less than twenty years of service or thirty years of service irregardless of age, he may elect for his survivor either the accumulated deductions plus interest or a joint and survivor annuity. If such has been made, his survivor shall be paid an annuity as provided in Section 354.45			
Chap. 605 SF 152	Teacher's retirement allowances shall not be assignable, but shall be exempt from inheritance taxes of the state.			
Chap. 688 SF 187	Provides for supplemental annuities to public employees who retired with certain qualifications, not to exceed \$200.00 per month.			
Chap. 693 SF 953	Annuitants over sixty, under teacher's retirement programs, may have their membership restored upon resumption of teaching and can collect additional annuities then earned. Raises the income limit on deductions from annuities to \$800.00. After a member has reached the age of seventy-two he shall receive his annuity in full regardless of the amount of income.			
Chap. 711 SF 148	Relates to annuities due under public employee's retirement plan, raising the maximum compensation allowable to one re-entering public			

service without suspending annuities, to \$2,000.00.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS (cont.)

Chap. 715 SF 371	Provides for supplemental benefits to certain annuitants under the teachers retirement program.
Chap. 728 SF 1456	Each certificate filed with the Commissioner of Insurance relating to the apportionment of state aid to a firemen's relief association shall be accompanied by an audit on the condition of the fund.
Chap. 729 SF 1458	Provides that certain pension funds for policemen and firemen shall have actuarial surveys in 1967 and each four years thereafter. Provides various changes and additions to factors and assumptions to be considered in such surveys.
Chap. 739 SF 2251	Removes \$7,200.00 limit on salaries of state police from which deductions shall be made for retirement fund purposes. Raises the deficit amortizing deductions to six and one-half percent. Includes dependent children over eighteen, under twenty-two, if enrolled in an accredited school on a full time basis. Makes other inclusions.
Chap. 795 HF 1592	Establishes a Minnesota supplemental retirement fund, to be administered by the State Board of Investment. Establishes two accounts and the procedure for administering each. Shares of participation in each shall be allocated to other public retirement funds.
Chap. 808 HF 1780	Enables the teachers retirement fund to purchase and redeem shares in the Minnesota supplemental retirement fund for the benefit of certain personnel employed by the State College and Junior College Boards, and appropriates \$22,300.00 for such purpose.
Chap. 823 HF 2049	Extends expiration date of Laws 1965, Chapter 174, Section 2, to July 1, 1969, appertaining to policemen's relief associations in cities of the third class.
Chap. 834 HF 241	Makes certain minor revisions in regard to payment into the teachers retirement fund during periods of leave, and deletes the \$7,200.00 limitation on which deductions for the fund may be made.
Chap. 841 HF 564	Probate judges may receive retirement credit for periods of service in the Minnesota National Guard, if during the federal muster regarding the Mexican border service, and service in World War I, even though prior to his term as probate judge.
Chap. 877 HF 2197	Entitles legislators to receive a retirement allowance after age sixty, by election, to be discounted at one-half of one percent for each month below age sixty-five. Payment into the fund for past credit may be made within six months after qualification. If a member for ten years, upon death the surviving spouse shall receive half the retirement allowance due the deceased at age sixty-five, not to be less than \$50.00. A member after July 1, 1967, who is also a member of the public employees retirement association, may elect within six months to remain a member thereof and shall not be required to make contributions required by M.S. 1965, Sections 3A.01 to 3A.10. For purposes herein a partial term shall be credited as a full term if a legislator is elected to serve the remainder of
	a vacancy

a vacancy.

STATE GOVERNMENT

Examining and Licensing Boards --

•	
E.S. Chap. 28 SF 40	Makes extensive revisions in provisions relating to the State Board of Registration for Architects, Engineers and Land Surveyors; deletes various clauses; adds others. Raises compensation of board members to \$35.
Chap. 68 HF 339	Raises nurse's license application fee to \$25, the registration fee to \$3.
Chap. 73 HF 579	Raises real estate brokers initial license fee to \$25, renewal to \$15, additional to \$25, renewal to \$15, and salesmen's transfer licenses shall bear a fee of \$10. Requires that broker applicants have two years experience as salesmen, or comparable experience.
Chap. 79 HF 44	Requires that local cartage carriers, as herein defined, obtain permits for \$50, renewal of \$75, increased by size of firm, from the Railroad and Warehouse Commission, and comply with the regulations herein.
Chap. 88 SF 216	Provides for a fee of \$150 for employment agency licenses.
Chap. 111 HF 680	Increases to \$10 the license fee for the practice of healing in this state.
Chap. 118 HF 681	Provides for the suspension of midwifery licenses if a guardian is appointed for reasons other than the licensee's minority, or if the license is committed by order of a probate court; in either case, suspension to be lifted when licensee is restored to capacity.
Chap. 119 HF 683	Provides for the suspension of physical therapists license if a guardian is appointed for reasons other than the licensee's minority, or if the license is committed by probate court order, such suspension to be lifted when licensee's capacity is restored.
Chap. 149 HF 986	Makes January the deadline for annual chiropractic licensing, rather than September.
Chap. 217 HF 586	Provides that each application for the issuance, renewal, or extension of a teaching certificate shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable fee of \$5. Strikes other related fees for limited and permanent certificates.
Chap. 305 HF 1850	Relates to rendering plants, requiring a permit from the Livestock Sanitary Board before engaging in the rendering business.
Chap. 318 SF 1035	Relates to the Railroad and Warehouse Commission, providing for licenses and license fees, bonds, and annual reports of local grain warehouses and grain buyers.

	$\psi(x,x)=\psi(x,x)$
Chap. 381 SF 130	Relates to optometry, increasing per diem allowances for members of the State Board of Optometry, providing for the registration of an applicant who holds a valid certificate from another state and increasing annual registration fees.
Chap. 415 SF 182	Relates to basic sciences, increasing the per diem compensation of the members of the State Board of Examiners in the Basic Sciences to \$35.
Chap. 416 SF 566	Relates to the State Board of Medical Examiners, changing certain provisions concerning the operations of the board and the licensing of persons to practice medicine in Minnesota.
Chap. 447 HF 1756	Relates to insurance, setting fees for examinations of agents.
Chap. 476 HF 1460	Relates to food handling, licensing the operation of food and beverage vending machines, providing for license fees, exemptions, inspection and enforcement and providing penalties.
Chap. 602 SF 380	Redrafts sections relating to the State Board of Electricity, its membership, powers, rights and duties, compensation, licensing of electricians, journeymen, apprentices, and regulations relating to their activities.
Chap. 690 SF 461	Prior to issuing an endorsement of an aerial spraying and dusting license the commissioner shall examine the licensee regarding the latter's familiarity with pesticides or plant growth regulations. Renewal applications to be made before April 1 annually, subject to a penalty of 50 percent of the fee.
Chap. 692 SF 709	Raises the various fees to be charged by the Barber Board for examining and licensing. Raises secretary's salary to \$9,000 and compensation of members to \$35.
Chap. 695 SF 1127	Requires licensing of dog kennels at an annual fee of \$10. Regulation to be under jurisdiction of Livestock Sanitary Board. Advertising done by the kennel must display the license number.
Chap. 706 SF 2130	The State Board of Chiropractic Examiners may waive the written examination in lieu of the written examination scores given on the national level and may grant a state license to the holder of a national certificate upon practical examination.
Chap. 845 HF 682	Makes extensive revisions relating to the practice of massage, rephrases terms, provides for registration rather than licensing, makes certain deletions within the applicable sections of M.S. 1965, Section 148.
Chap. 863 HF 1417	Provides that the \$1 registration fee for airmen and instructors shall be paid into the state airports fund.
Chap. 880 SF 710	Requires the examination, inspection and licensing of commercial driver training schools, at a rate of \$75 per year for the school and \$20 for each instructor. Excepts gratuitous instruction, employers giving training to employees, schools, and those qualified under a high school driver training program under certain circumstances.

stances.

Chap. 884 Requires the licensing of employment agencies, creates an Employ-SF 1326 ment Agency Advisory Board to advise the Industrial Commission in relation to this act. Prescribes the powers and duties thereof, establishes various types of licensing fees at \$150 annual agency fee, and \$5 for a counselor's license with a \$3 renewal. Regulates certain phases of the operation of such agencies.

Major Appropriations --

E.S. Chap. 8 *Appropriation for building fund.

E.S. Chap. 13 *Appropriation for building fund.

E.S. Chap. 48 *Appropriation for state departments.

Chap. 741 *Appropriation for Department of Public Welfare and Corrections.

Chap. 868 *Appropriation for educational purposes. inches: 1

Chap. 886 *Appropriation for semi-state purposes.

Chap. 887 *Appropriation for Department of Highways.

* See tables in appendix for comprehensive schedule of appropriations.

State Departments --

E.S. Chap. 1

Creates a Department of Labor and Industry in lieu of the Industrial Commission, vesting all the latter's powers in the former, and a division of Workmen's Compensation within the department having those relevant powers formerly vested in the Industrial Commission.

Chap. 8 HF 176

Makes the Minnesota State Historical Society a state department for purposes of applying workmen's compensation laws to its employees.

E.S. Chap. 43 SF 58

Enables members of the Real Estate Advisory Commission to receive expenses incurred for out-of-state meetings authorized by the commissioner.

Chap. 246 SF 1080

Authorizes the establishment of imprest cash funds in various departments, raises to \$1,500 the limitation on the imprest fund of the Department of Employment Security.

Chap. 299 HF 957

Changes the name of the Department of Business Development to the Department of Economic Development, requiring the establishment of certain new divisions thereof, a commission of 21 members, authorizing promotional contracts and the establishment of an imprest cash fund.

Chap. 314 HF 1674

1. 11. 1

Relates to the Public Examiner and reimbursible costs of audits of state departments and agencies, providing a formula by which the amount reimbursed is determined.

Chap. 404 MF 258	Relates to the State Board of Investment, prescribing the qualifications of its executive secretary, providing for the investment of certain retirement and other funds and regulating generally the investment policy of the board.
Chap. 419 HF 426	Relates to the State Highway Patrol, eliminating former personnel limits and prescribing new salary schedules for patrolmen.
Chap. 475 MF 1456	Relates to the hiring of publicity representatives by state departments and agencies, authorizing the State Agricultural Society to employ a publicity representative.
Chap. 864 MF 2032	Replaces the Railroad and Warehouse Commission with a Department of Public Service having a service and an administrative branch and consisting of the three elected Railroad and Warehouse Commissioners, which eventually shall become appointive offices. Prescribes the duties and powers of the commission.
Chap. 867 MF 2317	Changes the name of Minnesota Outdoor Recreation Resources Commission to the Minnesota Resources Commission and deletes certain of its functions. Makes the maximum state contribution of 50 percent of the cost with a maximum of \$100,000.00. Makes other minor revisions within the section.
Chap. 882 SF 845	Creates a Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, and prescribes its powers and duties relating to air and water pollution, including those of the superseded Water Pollution Control Commission. Requires the public's compliance with the agency's regulations, violation punishable by fine of \$100.00 or 90 days imprisonment. Requires the periodic reporting to the governor and legislature.
Chap. 893 MF 421	Establishes a Minnesota Commission on Alcohol Problems, prescribes the duties and powers thereof.
Chap. 897 MF 1545	Creates a Department of Human Rights, superseding the State Commission Against Discrimination, and extensively amending existing statutes in accordance with the prescribed powers and duties thereof, to secure for individuals freedom from discrimination in connection with employment, housing, real property, public accommodations, services and education.
Chap. 898 MF 2421	Creates an office of Local and Urban Affairs within the State Planning Agency, and makes extensive changes in and additions to the duties and powers of the State Planning Officer. Prescribes the powers and duties of said office of Local and Urban Affairs.
Chap. 909 NF 946	Creates a Land Exchange Board to review all proposals for land exchanges and determine the state's best interests in each case.

State Employees --

E.S. Chap. 46 SF 67	Authorizes state agencies and departments to participate in a program of interchange of employees with the federal or other state
	governments, subject to the provisions and qualifications contained herein, for up to one year assignments.

Chap. 103	Relates to certain o	officers and employees of	the state and their
HF 684	dependents, providin	g for certain insurance,	medical and related
•	benefits.		

Chap. 193	Establishes	a higher schedule o	f pay rates for civil service em-
SF 266	ployees and	makes other revision	n relating to compensation.
and the second of the			

Chap. 667	Raises the pay ranges of classifications A, B, and C of civil ser-
SF 596	vice employees to \$16,000.00 - \$23,000.00, \$19,000.00 - \$26,000.00
	and \$23,000.00 - \$28,500.00, respectively.

Chap. 714	Provides for supplemental benefit of \$18.00 per month to former
SF 311	state employees meeting certain requirements.

Chap. 759 Enables certain employees of the state to o HF 2419 at their own expense, as exceptions to Laws		
era erange a Section 9.		19 mm - 19 mm
Miscellaneous	e je	t:

Chap. 4	Establishes an intersta	te compact authorizing	cooperation in pro-
SF 139	viding library services	between Minnesota and	her bordering states.
Sugar Section 1	the second control of the second second		The second secon

Chap. 18	Provides that the exceptions contained in Section 471.88, relating
SF 33	to the interest of public officers in contracts, shall apply not
	withstanding the provisions of other statutes or city charters.

E.S. Chap. 39	Lifts the prohibition against public officers or employees becom-
SF 48	ing delegates to political conventions, and provides for a years
grand grand and	leave of absence to same if they are candidates for office, deleting
in the second of	the necessity for them to resign.

Chap. 43	Requires that the Attorney General provide legal opinions on ques-
SF 109	tions of law submitted to him by legislative commissions and commit-
• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	tees.

ES Chan 51	Proposes an amendment to the state constitution to allow the legis-
•	
SF 30	lature three days after adjournment to present bills to the Governor,
	and to allow him fourteen days after adournment to sign or veto
	a bill.

Chap. 52	Makes certain revisions relating to the Minnesota Soldiers Home,
SF 408	deleting obsolete language, extending the benefits to those serving
and the second second	against the Viet Cong and those serving in Korea through January 31,
	1955. Extends relief to children under 16 rather than 14 years of
A STATE OF THE STATE OF	age.

Chap. 54 MF 108	Relates to Minnesota Historic Sites Act of 1965, adding various newly created sites.
Chap。 125 附F 1005	Changes terminology relating to the interests of public officials in public contracts.
Chap. 293 SF 748	Provides that if the state central services revolving fund is abolished, the profit therefrom shall be distributed to the various funds from which purchases were made in proportion to such funds purchases.
Chap. 306 MF 1884	Permits the Commissioner of Administration to negotiate contracts for public works of the State of Minnesota of \$3,500.00 or less.
Chap. 312 NF 1127	Relates to contracts and purchases of the state, providing that in cases where identical low bids are made the Commissioner of Administration may, at his discretion, utilize negotiated procurement methods with the low bidders.
Chap. 390 SF 1505	Provides for the validation and legalization of certain state assignment certificates.
Chap. 414 SF 2215	Relates to state agencies and governmental subdivisions, providing for the purchase of blind-made articles and goods and for the employment of blind labor whenever they are available on equally advantageous terms as goods, articles and services from other sources.
Chap. 624 NF 2506	Enables executive offices to be established within the capitol area.
Chap. 674 MF 1591	Relates to the payment of refunds under the budget and allotment system which shall be chargeable against the fund for the period in which the refund is made.
Chap. 696 SF 1201	Fixes the salary of the state public defender by law.
Chap. 700 SF 1358	Provides retirement benefits for constitutional officers serving the state for at least ten years, either as constitutional officers, commissioners, or both. The retirement allowance shall be 50 percent of his salary at the time of his retirement, with additions up to 75 percent for longer service. Upon death, one half of the allotment due will be afforded his widow. Constitutional officers or commissioners shall pay seven percent of their salaries into the general revenue fund, refundable upon separation. Repeals M.S. 1965, Section 490.025, Subdivisions 7 and 9.
Chap. 701 SF 1417	Relates to coverage of public officials under workmer's compensation, excluding members of the legislature, but including other elected or appointed state officials. Officers of political subdivisions shall be included only after adoption of an enabling ordinance in the locality. Includes executive officers of corporations and inmates. A public officer receiving workmen's compensation for disability in addition to compensation due him from his position shall have amounts in excess of \$100.00 per year deducted from the payments.

Chap. 789 HF 1457	Empowers the board of managers of the state agricultural Society to provide for and fix the compensation of the justice of the peace in attendance during the state fair.
Chap. 851 HF 900	Provides that the mileage rate collectable by state and local officials shall be nine cents per mile.
Chap. 869 HF 141	Proposes an amendment to Article IV, Sections 9 and 17 of the State Constitution, to enable legislators to serve as notary publics and, if elected or appointed to another office, to resign from the legislature.

And the second of the second of

TAXATION

E.S. Chap. 35 Relates to the disposition of proceeds from the sale of tax forfeitsf 28 ed lands, providing that county boards may set aside twenty percent of the receipts for the acquisition and maintenance of county parks or recreational areas.

- Chap. 113 In the case of the tax return of a cooperative association, such HF 1115 shall be filed on or before the fifteenth day of the ninth month following the close of the taxable year.
- Chap. 117 Makes certain definitional changes relating to mobile homes for purposes of taxation, as to whether or not they are occupied as dwellings.
- Chap. 120 Empowers the Commissioner of Taxation to destroy all original documents of which microfilm copies have been made, and empowers him to employ a commercial photographer for the purpose of developing such films.
- Chap. 285 Relates to taxation and the tree growth tax law, to include ad Walorem taxes among those not payable under certain circumstances.
- Chap. 340 Relates to the taxation of the mortgage registry tax, providing HF 865 for the taxation of any supplemental mortgage.
- Chap. 451 Relates to gross receipts taxation, exempting from such tax on gross HF 1987 receipts all amateur boxing and sparring exhibitions.
- Chap. 474 Relates to the county non-resident tuition tax, providing for the holding in escrow of the proceeds of the tax pending classification of a secondary school by the state board.
- Chap. 577 Where the election available to a partnership or proprietorship to be taxed as a domestic corporation has been revoked, the consequential tax change shall be determined under Section 1361 of the Internal Revenue Code.
- Chap. 671

 Relates to the taxation of copper-nickel ores as defined within the act, and concentrates derived therefrom, the mining, production or benefication of such ores and the facilities used in connection therewith, imposes an income tax on income derived therefrom; provides for a tax credit for occupation taxes, a deduction from gross income for depletion allowances, exploration and development; imposes an occupation tax, royalties tax.
- Chap. 705 Cooperative dwellings owned by their occupants or charitable cor-SF 2041 porations may be treated as homesteads by their owner-occupants and the association or corporation, in regard to taxation.

TAXATION (cont.)

Income Tax --

Chap. 42 Provides for reciprocal tax relief for nonresidents earning income HF 111 in Minnesota, provided certain requirements are met.

Chap. 76 Allows servicemen an additional \$2,000.00 deduction if received for duty outside the state.

Chap. 116 Income taxes due amounting to \$1.00 or less need not be paid. SF 956

Chap. 579 Shareholders of a small business corporation taxed under the Inter-HF 1121 nal Revenue Code but not having made an election under M.S. 1965, Section 290.972, shall deduct from federal adjusted gross income imputed income from such corporation and add to the federal adjusted gross any loss claimed from such stock, as well as any distributions made by the corporation to them. If such corporation is liquidated or the shareholder disposes of his stock and there is no loss reflected in the federal adjusted gross, such shareholders are entitled to a capital loss commensurate to their Minnesota basis for the stock if the corporate losses have exhausted the shareholders basis for federal purposes. If the election under Section 1372 of the Internal Revenue Code antedates that under M.S. 1965, Section 290.972 and the corporation has an undistributed reserve of taxable income previously taxed to shareholders, if such is distributed it shall be taxed as a dividend under this act.

Chap. 582 Credits against the tax shall be clearly set forth in income tax returns, as well as any other data necessary for computing net income tax liability.

Chap. 597
Provides that net operating loss deductions may be taken only by corporate taxpayers except as provided in M.S. 1965, Section 290.095, Subd. 6 and 7, and section 3 of this chapter, which relates to special periods of limitation with respect to net operating loss carrybacks, which shall be that period ending on the fifteenth day of the forty-sixth month after the taxable year of the operating loss. Adjustments of federal adjusted gross income in individual cases shall be included.

Chap. 899 Provides for the deduction of certain disaster losses from income HF 2605 for income tax purposes.

Chap. 900 Amends M.S. 1965, Section 290.08, Subd. 5, by deleting provisions pertaining to the receipt of payments in lieu of wages during illness or injury and their exclusion from gross income compilation.

Inheritance, Gift and Estate Taxes --

Chap. 850

Relates to inheritance and gift taxes, making certain formal alterations in the body of M.S. 1965, Sections 291.01, Subd. 4, 291.14, 508.71 and 600.21; renumbers and reorders certain of these sections; deletes other clauses.

TAXATION (cont.)

Property Tax --

E.S. Chap. 60 SF 15	"Minnesota Agricultural Property Tax Law" - creates a method for evaluating land used exclusively for agriculture and homestead, on the basis of the highest and best agricultural use to which it may be put.
Chap. 248 HF 1050	Relates to redemption by the mortgagor or mortgagee of property sold through a sheriffs' sale, determining circumstances under which such may be accomplished; and defining the redemption period.
Chap. 470 HF 1245	Relates to registered land surveys, providing that before any survey is filed, there must be endorsed thereon the county treasurer's and the county auditor's certifications that all taxes have been paid.
Chap. 555 SF 1881	Taxes shall be imposed and deductions allowed where the estate has been submitted to the jurisdiction of the probate court. Where it has not been submitted, deductions shall be allowed for funeral expenses, illness, federal estate taxes under a prescribed formula set out herein, a personal property allowance, other taxes accrued and liened against the property, legal and fiduciary fees incident to non-probate assets. Deductions for the first, second, third and last of those expenses shall be allowed only to those having disbursed money for payment thereof.
Chap. 578 HF 1116	Taxes assessed against property shall be liened against it beginning on January 2 in the year they are levied, and assessments shall be made by the assessor on January 2 when necessary.
Chap. 592 SF 540	Limits to twelve mills the levy for the county road and bridge fund in counties having populations of between two-hundred thousand and three-hundred thousand. Counties previously authorized to levy twenty mills may continue to do so and add five mills to their levy.
Chap. 865 HF 2166	Exempts from taxation all real and personal property owned by seaway port authorities, whether leased or not. However, where income exceeds a certain limit, a portion thereof shall be paid to the county treasurer in lieu of real and personal property taxes.
Chap. 802 HF 1704	Imposes a tax upon motor fuels used by commercial vehicles operated by motor carriers on state highways; requires licensing at fee of \$10.00, and the filing of monthly reports with the commissioner. If subject to similar taxes in other states, such will be credited against that payable here. Other conditions, provisions and regulations appertaining to the same matter.
Chap. 821 HF 2022	Requires telephone companies to file their returns with the commissioner by April 15 each year, and make payments by that date.
Chap. 874 HF 573	Raises the excise tax on gasoline to seven cents per gallon.

TAXATION (cont.)

Chap. 878 SF 318 Tax levys for activity centers for the mentally retarded shall not exceed one-half mill in any city, town or village, and one mill in any county. If county is contiguous with cities of the first class the levy shall not exceed two-tenths mills, and the combined levy not to exceed three-tenths. In any other county containing a city of the first class, the county levy shall not exceed three-tenths mills.

Chap. 901 MF 1697 Provides that M.S. 1965, Section 290.09, shall be applicable to taxable years beginning after December 31, 1966.

Chap. 902 MF 1699

On the property of the property o

Requires those in arrears regarding taxes under M.S. 1965, Section 290.92, upon being notified, establish a bank account containing the amount contested, in trust for the state until the issue is determined. Failure to comply with these and other provisions hereunder shall be a gross misdemeanor. Establishes various defenses to the charge.

- 63 -

VETOED BILLS

HF 1292

The original tax reform act, later repassed as file HF 27 in the extra session, which was in turn vetoed and passed over the veto.

POCKET VETOED BILLS

SF 81

An act relating to governor's appointments at certain times, limiting the time in which appointments may be made before, after and during legislative sessions and providing for the payment of appointee's salaries.

SF 986

A bill raising the compensation for members of the Adult Corrections Commission to \$35.00 per day.

SF 988

Vetoes a bill raising compensation of the members of the Youth Conservation Commission and any district or probate judge to \$35.00 per day.

HF 2381

Vetoes act continuing the employment of the chief of the Wold-Chamberlain Airport safety division, as an exception to M.S. 1965, Section 422.05 (8c).

INTERIM COMMISSIONS

E.S. Chap. 55 Creates various commissions: Indian Affairs Commission; Interim SF 62 Commission on Elementary and Secondary Education; Administrative Rules, Regulations, Procedures and Practices; Interim Commission on Highways; Lake of the Woods and Rainy Lake Area, and authorizing studies on the utilization of state services; and the location and need of a new medical school.

TABLE I
SUMMARY OF 1967 LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS
BY FUND, BY YEAR

Fund	1967	1968	1969	Biennial Total	Total Including Deficiencies
General Revenue - Direct	\$3,283,736.86	\$228,619,480.41	\$235,485,149.00		
General Revenue - Open		9,536,969.00	18,463,843.00	\$464,104,629.41 28,000,812.00	\$467,388,366.27 28,000,812.00
Sub-Total	3,283,786.86	238,156,449.41	253,948,992.00	492,105,441.41	495,389,178.27
Income Tax School - Direct	13,148,308.45	239,690,239.00	258,047,155.00	497,737,394.00	510,885,702.45
Income Tax School - Open		57,689,181.00	61,800,181.00	119,489,362.00	119,489,362.00
Sub-Total	13,148,308.45	297,379,420.00	319,847,336.00	617,226,756.00	630,375,064.45
Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation	i i	185,000.00	150,000.00	335,000.00	335,000.00
State Airports	6,064.46	3,573,081.00	356,272.00	3,929,353.00	3,935,417.46
Game and Fish	56,705.11	7,005,749.00	6,585,632.00	13,591,381.00	13,648,086.11
Trunk Highway	874,704.39	17,928,330.00	13,876,289.00	31,804,619.00	32,679,323.39
Highway User Tax Distribution	39,499.02	2,974,510.00	3,027,103.00	6,001,613.00	6,041,112.02
Consolidated Conservation Areas	52,379.15		75,000.00	75,000.00	127,379.15
Wildlife Acquisition	•	342,000.00	342,000.00	684,000.00	684,000.00
Mobile Homes Registration and Taxation	1,499.35	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	,	30.,000.00	1,499.35
Natural Resources	672.36	8,355,981.00		8,355,981.00	8,356,653.36
Building	4,117.30			0,000,002,00	4,117.30
State Parks Development	1,785.61	685,000.00		685,000.00	686,785.61
Highway Safety		26,167.00	26,900.00	53,067.00	53,067.00
Sub-Total	1,037,426.75	41,075,818.00	24,439,196.00	65,515,014.00	66,552,440.75
GRAND TOTAL	17,469,472.06	576,611,687.41	598,235,524.00	1,174,847,211.41	1,192,316,683.47

TABLE II
Estimated "Open" or "Standing" Appropriations
From General Revenue and Income Tax School Funds*

General Revenue Fund	1968	1969
Aid to Fire Departments	\$ 1,150,000.00	\$ 1,210,000.00
Surcharge for Firemen's Relief	240,000.00	255,000.00
General Revenue Refunds	200,000.00	
Cancelled Warrants Suspense	6,000.00	200,000.00 6,000.00
Mpls., Cuyuna and Anoka Railroad	0,000.00	0,000.00 -
Mayberry Compensation	1,200.00	1,200.00
Weber Compensation	1,200.00	1,200.00
Retired Clerk of Court Compensation	1,200.00	1,200.00
Administration a/c Highway Building		
Abandoned Bank Deposits Refunds	20,000.00	20,000.00
Colored Oleo Margarine Tax for Research	3,000.00	3,000.00
Consolidated Conservation a/c Insufficient Finances for Appropriation	125,000.00	125,000.00
		5/5 100 00
Employers' Contributions for S.E.R.A. (L. '67 - C. 571)	545,100.00	545,100.00
Safety Inspection at Tower-Soudan State Park T.R.A. for Pioneer Teachers' Retirement (L. '67 - C. 654)	500.00	500.00
	29,000.00	29,000.00
Tax Relief a/c Airport	5,250.00	5,250.00
Athletic Commission	15,000.00	15,000.00
Employee Insurance Program (L. '67 - C. 103 and C.759)	4,909,395.00	5,082,977.00
Voting Machine Commission		
State College Board a/c Economic Opportunity Act	279,178.00	365,523.00
Junior College Board a/c Economic Opportunity Act	51,944.00	64,281.00
Executive Council Emergency Aid		
Legislators' Retirement Program (L. '67 - C. 877)	12,576.00	12,576.00
Elected State Officers' Retirement Program (L. '67 - C. 700)	7,800.00	7,800.00
S.E.R.A. for Supplemental Benefits (L. '67 - C. 714)	218,000.00	210,000.00
Bond Sales Expense	3,500.00	3,500.00
T.R.A. for Supplemental Benefits (L. '67 - C. 715)	330,000.00	320,000.00
P.E.R.A. for Supplemental Benefits (L. '67 - C. 688)	179,576.00	167,424.00
Building Bond Payments (L. '67 - C. X-8)	1,203,750.00	9,813,512.00
Sub-Total General Revenue	9,536,969.00	18,463,843.00
Income Tax School Fund		
Census Aid - \$10 per Pupil	8,900,000.00	9,000,000.00
School Aids – Military Lands	1,500.00	1,500.00
Income Tax Refunds	48,000,000.00	52,000,000.00
Attributable Costs	298,000.00	309,000.00
Employers' Contributions for S.E.R.A.	29,400.00	29,400.00
Employee Insurance Program	422,781.00	422,781.00
Additional School Aids a/c Redetermination of Valuations (L.'67 - C.726)	37,500.00	37,500.00
Sub-Total Income Tax School	57,689,181.00	61,800,181.00
Total Open and Standing Appropriations	67,226,150.00	80,264,024.00

^{*} An "open" or "standing" appropriation is one which sets apart an unspecified or a specified amount of funds for continuous use without the need for reenactment by each succeeding legislature.

Certain items listed as open or standing appropriations have no amount indicated. The lack of an amount indicates either that the appropriation is made in an open amount if certain events transpire and the nature of the event determines the amount of the appropriation or that all details were not available at the time of preparing this chart to estimate accurately the appropriation required.

TABLE III 1967 DIRECT LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND, BY YEAR

<u>Chapter</u>	1967	1968	1969	Biennial Total	Total Including Deficiencies
General Revenue Fund 2 Lieutenant Governor - Special Session Salar	v \$ 1.000.00	\$	\$	\$	\$ 1,000.00
30 General Deficiency	66,816.00	*	*	*	\$ 1,000.00 66,816.00
74 Southwest State College 254 River Basin Water and Related	300,000.00				300,000.00
Land Resources Commission	95,000.00				95,000.00
307 Legislature and Retired Judges Deficiency	362,000.00	11/ 15/ (0		11/ 15/ 40	362,000.00
403 Land Acquisition - Fort Snelling State Park 453 Construct Fence - Fort Snelling State Park		114,156.60 6,500.00		114,156.60 6,500.00	114,156.60 6,500.00
549 Legislative Retirement Study Commission	4,000.00	21,000.00	25,000.00	46,000.00	50,000.00
632 Claims Commission Awards 668 State College Board - Doctoral Program Stud	151,058.26 y 25,000.00				151,058.26 25,000.00
687 P.E.R.A. Coverage under O.A.S.I.	,				
State Agency Revolving 740 Miscellaneous Claims	77,082.90	30,000.00		30,000.00	30,000.00 77,082.90
741 Welfare-Corrections	724,632.79	91,922,058.00	95,206,275.00	187,128,333.00	187,852,965.79
808 Administration of Supplemental Retirement P. 868 Education	lan 17,807.56	22,300.00 90,089,510.00	100,372,837.00	22,300.00 190,462,347.00	22,300.00 190,480,154.56
870 Peace Officer Training Board	2.,	25,000.00	25,000.00	50,000.00	50,000.00
876 Administration of Snowmobile Registration 886 Semi-State Activities	7,316.88	150,000.00 1,586,722.00	1,613,120.00	150,000.00 3,199,842.00	150,000.00
891 Great Lakes Basin Commission	50,000.00		1,013,120.00	3,199,042.00	3,207,158.88 50,000.00
909 Land Exchange Review Board X-13 Building Repairs and Alterations		35,000.00 4,068,723.81	35,000.00	70,000.00	70,000.00
X-32 Administration of Tax Reform and Relief Act	700,000.00	4,000,723.81		4,068,723.81	4,068,723.81 700,000.00
X-48 State Departments X-55 Interim Commissions	594,522.47 107,500.00	40,536,010.00	38,207,917.00	78,743,927.00	79,338,449.47
X-56 Purchase of "Minnesota Reports"	207,500.00	12,500.00		12,500.00	107,500.00 12,500.00
Total	3,283,736.86	228,619,480.41	235,485,149.00	464,104,629,41	467,388,366.27
Income Tax School Fund			·		
30 General Deficiency	76,490.00				76,490.00
132 School Aid Deficiency 741 Welfare-Corrections	12,998,548.00 61,225.91	10 001 070 00	10 224 221 00	20 /1/ 101 00	12,998,548.00
868 Education	01,223.91	10,081,870.00 225,006,675.00	10,334,231.00 243,150,862.00	20,416,101.00 468,157,537.00	20,477,326.91 468,157,537.00
886 Semi-State Activities		50,000.00	50,000.00	100,000.00	100,000.00
X-25 Professional Teaching Practices Commission X-48 State Departments	12,044.54	10,000.00 4,541,694.00	4,512,062.00	10,000.00 9,053,756.00	10,000.00 9,065,800.54
Total	13,148,308.45	239,690,239.00	258,047,155.00	497,737,394.00 [√]	510,885,702.45
Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation Acco	unt				
749 Acquisition of Land - St. Louis County	, <u>unc</u>	10,000.00		10,000.00	10,000.00
868 Education X-48 State Departments		150,000.00 25,000.00	150,000.00	300,000.00 25,000.00	300,000.00 25,000.00
Total			150,000,00		
Ital		185,000.00	150,000.00	335,000.00	335,000.00
State Airports Fund 30 General Deficiency	6,000.00				6,000.00
X-48 State Departments	64.46	3,573,081.00	356,272.00	3,929,353.00	3,929,417.46
Total	6,064.46	3,573,081.00	356,272.00	3,929,353.00	3,935,417.46
Game and Fish Fund					
740 Miscellaneous Claims	11,317.07				11,317.07
749 Acquisition of Land - St. Louis County	45 300 O4	15,000.00	6 505 633 00	15,000.00	15,000.00
X-48 State Departments Total	45,388.04	6,990,749.00 7,005,749.00	6,585,632.00	13,576,381.00	13,621,769.04
iorai	56,705.11	7,003,749.00	6,585,632.00	13,591,381.00	13,648,086.11
Trunk Highway Fund 256 Interstate Highway Rest Area Buildings	480,000.00				490,000,00
550 Minnesota Safety Council	480,000.00	40,000.00	40,000.00	80,000.00	480,000.00 80,000.00
632 Claims Commission Awards 740 Miscellaneous Claims	43,195.23				43,195.23
887 Highway Department	32,562.37 318,946.79	17,860,836.00	13,808,905.00	31,669,741.00	32,562.37 31,988,687.79
X-48 State Departments		27,494.00	27,384.00	54,878.00	54,878.00
Total	874,704.39	17,928,330.00	13,876,289.00	31,804,619,00	32,679,323.39
Highway User Tax Distribution Fund					
632 Claims Commission Awards 740 Miscellaneous	4,901.58				4,901.58
X-48 State Departments	169.26 9,428.18	2,974,510.00	3,027,103.00	6,001,613.00	169.26 6,011,041.18
X-55 Interim Commissions	25,000.00	-		-	25,000.00
Total	39,499.02	2,974,510.00	3,027,103.00	6,001,613.00	6,041,112.02

TABLE III (cont.) 1967 DIRECT LEGISLATIVE APPROPRIATIONS BY FUND, BY YEAR

Chap	<u>ter</u> Consolidated Conservation Areas Fund	1967	1968	1969	Biennial Total	Total Including Deficiencies
	Miscellaneous Claims State Departments	\$ 52,379.15	\$	\$ 	\$ 	\$ 52,379.15 75,000.00
	Total	52,379.15		75,000.00	75,000.00	127,379.15
x-48	Wildlife Acquisition Fund State Departments		342,000.00	342,000.00	684,000.00	684,000.00
	Mobile Homes Registration and Taxation Accounting Commission Awards Miscellaneous Claims Total	1,321.69 177.66 1,499.35				1,321.69 177.66
x-48	Natural Resources Fund State Departments	672.36	8,355,981.00		8,355,981.00	1,499.35 8,356,653.36
X-48	Building Fund State Departments	4,117.30				4,117.30
X-48	State Parks Development Account State Departments	1,785.61	685,000.00		685,000.00	686,785.61
x-48	Highway Safety Account State Departments		26,167.00	26,900.00	53,067.00	53,067.00
Grand	i Totals Direct Appropriations	17,469,472.06	\$509,385,537.41	\$517,971,500.00	\$1,027,357,037.41	\$1,044,826,509.47

TABLE IV COMPARISON OF FIVE MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS 1967 LEGISLATIVE SESSION DEFICIENCIES REPORTED SEPARATELY

	_		RNOR'S RECOMMEN	DATION	=1,341,331,	HOUSE BILLS			SENATE BILLS*			LAWS OF 1967	
		Gen'l. Rev. Fund	Other Funds	Total	Gen'l. Rev. Fund	Other Funds	Total	Gen'l. Rev. Fund	Other Funds	Total	Gen'l. Rev. Fund	Other Funds	Total
	Education 1967-68 1968-69 Biennial Total Deficiencies Grand Total	\$ 89,708,604 101,065,274	\$220,754,518 238,602,870 459,357,388 17,628,449 476,985,837	\$310,463,122 339,668,144 650,131,266 17,646,267 667,777,533	\$ 88,657,110 99,395,182 188,052,292 17,807 188,070,099	\$222,139,950 242,070,135 464,210,085	\$310,797,060 341,465,317 652,262,377 17,807 652,280,184	\$ 89,584,793 100,254,405 189,839,198 17,807 189,857,005	\$224,396,727 244,497,252 468,893,979	\$313,981,520 344,751,657 658,733,177 17,807 658,750,984	\$ 90,089,510 100,372,837 190,462,347 17,807 190,480,154	\$225,156,675 243,300,862 468,457,537	\$315,246,185 343,673,699 658,919,884 17,807
	Grand Total	190, 191,090	410,907,031	00131113755	100,010,099	404,210,007	092,200,104	109,007,000	400,093,919	050,150,904	190,400,154	400,471,731	658,937,691
	Highways 1967-68 1968-69 Biennial Total Deficiencies Grand Total		18,285,758 12,745,187 31,030,945 318,096 31,349,041	18,285,758 12,745,187 31,030,945 318,096 31,349,041		19,363,091 14,353,005 33,716,096 318,946 34,035,042	19,363,091 14,353,005 33,716,096 318,946 34,035,042		15,662,866 12,634,671 28,297,537 318,946 28,616,483	15,662,866 12,634,671 28,297,537 318,946 28,616,483		17,860,836 13,808,905 31,669,741 318,946 31,988,687	17,860,836 13,808,905 31,669,741 318,946 31,988,687
e.	Semi-State 1967-68 1968-69 Biennial Total Deficiencies Grand Total	1,393,589 1,416,565 2,810,154 4,316 2,814,470	195,000 185,000 380,000	1,588,589 1,601,565 3,190,154 4,316 3,194,470	1,579,517 1,604,296 3,183,813 7,316 3,191,129	50,000 50,000 100,000	1,629,517 1,654,296 3,283,813 7,316 3,291,129	1,534,553 1,548,912 3,083,465 4,316 3,087,781	50,000 50,000 100,000	1,584,553 1,598,912 3,183,465 4,316 3,187,781	1,586,722 1,613,120 3,199,842 7,316 3,207,158	50,000 50,000 100,000	1,636,722 1,663,120 3,299,842 7,316 3,307,158
-	• 01000	2,014,410	500,000	J, 1, 7+, 7+10	392929	100,000	3,291,129	3,007,101	100,000	3,101,101	0/16/026	100,000	3,301,100
X 2	State Departments 1967-68 1968-69 Biennial Total Deficiencies Grand Total	39,472,703 38,608,956 78,081,659 171,760 78,253,419	15,978,831 15,862,226 31,841,057 449,696 32,290,753	55,451,534 54,471,182 109,922,716 621,456 110,544,172	38,471,767 37,530,431 76,002,198 171,760 76,173,958	27,368,508 14,500,728 41,869,236 491,140 42,360,376	65,840,275 52,031,159 117,871,434 662,900 118,534,334	39,914,838 37,763,550 77,678,388 567,272 78,245,660	27,394,407 15,698,900 43,093,307 73,500 43,166,807	67,309,245 53,462,450 120,771,695 640,772 121,412,467	40,536,010 38,207,917 78,743,927 594,522 79,338,449	27,541,676 14,952,353 42,494,029 73,500 42,567,529	68,077,686 53,160,270 121,237,956 668,022 121,905,978
	Welfare and Correct 1967-68 1968-69 Biennial Total	91,905,755 95,422,450 187,328,205	10,324,644 10,631,808 20,956,452	102,230,399 106,054,258 208,284,657	88,920,936 92,131,459 181,052,395	10,110,024 10,383,871 20,493,895	99,030,960 102,515,330 201,546,290	93,489,701 97,019,415 190,509,116	10,253,044 10,536,471 20,789,515	103,742,745 107,555,886 211,298,631	91,922,058 95,206,275 187,128,333	10,081,870 10,334,231 20,416,101	102,003,928 105,540,506 207,544,434
	Deficiencies Grand Total	643,849	61,225	705,075	784,632 181,837,027	61,225	845,858 202,392,148	724,632 191,233,748	61,225	785,858 212,084,489	724,632 187,852,965	61,225	785,858 208,330,292
	Total - Five Major 1967-68 1968-69 Biennial Total Deficiencies Grand Total	Bills 222,480,651 236,513,245	273,429,053 278,027,091 551,456,144 18,131,007	495,909,704 514,540,336 1,010,450,040 19,487,019 1,029,937,059	217,629,330 230,661,278 448,290,608 1,399,157 449,689,765	279,060,476 281,328,836 560,389,312 453,673	496,689,806 511,990,114 1,008,679,920 1,852,830 1,010,532,750	224,523,885 236,586,282 461,110,167 1,314,029 462,424,196	277,757,044 283,417,294 561,174,338 453,673	502,280,929 520,003,576 1,022,284,505 1,767,702 1,024,052,207	224,134,300 235,400,149 459,534,449 1,344,279 460,878,728	280,691,057 282,446,351 563,137,408 453,673	504,825,357 517,846,500 1,022,671,857 1,797,952
	GLAMA TOCAT	400,347,701	7079 7019171	±,00€7,731,0079	++5,005,105	J00,042,507	170 (250)	TUC,424,190	المال و ١٥٥٥ و ١٥٠٠	1,024,00,00	700,010,120	703,751,001	1,024,407,009

NOTE: There are slight differences in totals due to dropping the "cents" column.

The Governor's Recommendations are based on the printed budget.

^{*}Aids to schools were not included in the Senate Education bill. This item is included here for purposes of comparison only.

TABLE V

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1959 THROUGH 1967

. Deficiencies Included

			1			
	TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS - FOUR MAJOR BILL	Total S* Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
	1967 Session 1965 Session	\$1,024,469,809 759,574,102	\$460,878,728 348,168,702	\$497,800,665 393,149,921	\$13,621,769 11,483,070	\$52,168,647
	1963 Session	637,023,478	284,940,640	335,582,083		6,772,408
	1961 Session	566,938,926	252,777,314		10,401,465	6,099,290
	1959 Session	476,853,522	208,824,655	299,511,721 253,573,633	8,775,982 8,188,966	5,873,907 6,266,266
	ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES	•				
	Dollar Increase 1967 over 1965 % Increase 1967 over 1965	264,895,707 34 .9%	112,710,026 32.4%	104,650,744 26.6%	2,138,699 18.6%	45,396,239 670 .3%
	Dollar Increase 1967 over 1963 % Increase 1967 over 1963	387,446,331 60.8%	175,938,088 61.7%	162,218,582 48.3%	3,220,304 30.9%	46,069,357 755.4%
70 -	Dollar Increase 1967 over 1961 % Increase 1967 over 1961	457 , 530,883 80 .7%	208,101,414 82.3%	198,288,944 66.2%	4,845,787 55 .2%	46,294,740 788.3%
	Dollar Increase 1967 over 1959 % Increase 1967 over 1959	54 7,6 16,287 114.8%	252,054,073 120.7%	244,227,032 96.3%	5,432,803 66.4%	45,902,381 732.6%
	BIENNIAL CHANGES Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963 % Increase 1965 over 1963	122,550,624 19.2%	63,228,062 22.2%	57,567,838 17 .2%	1,081,605 10.4%	673,118 11.0%
	Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 % Increase 1963 over 1961	70,084,552 12.4%	32,163,326 12.7%	36,070,362 12.0%	1,625,483 18.5%	225,383 3.8%
	Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	90,085,404 18.9%	43,952,659 21.0%	45,938,088 18.1%	587,016 7.2%	(392,359) (6.3%)

^{*}Excludes direct appropriation to the Department of Highways in the 1961, 1963 and 1965 Sessions. In prior years no direct appropriations were made to this department.

TABLE VI

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1959 THROUGH 1967

Deficiencies Included

		res THETHNER			
EDUCATION	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
1967 Session	\$658,937,691	\$190,480,154	\$468,157,537		\$300,000
1965 Session	503,201,027	133,024,839	370,016,188		
1963 Session	414,713,296	99,223,046	315,102,266		160,000
1961 Session	366,680,732	82,120,807			387,984
1959 Session			284,235,924		324,000
1979 Descron	292,729,206	53,107,330	239,321,876		300,000
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1965	155,736,664	57,455,315	98,141,349		140,000
% Increase 1967 over 1965	30.9%	43.2%	26.5%		87.5%
		5	2007		01.570
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1963	244,224,395	91,257,108	153,055,271		(87 ogh)
% Increase 1967 over 1963	58.9%	92.0%	48.6%		(87,984)
)U•9µ	7a. • 0 /0	40.0%		(22.7%)
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1961	292,256,959	108,359,347	192 001 612		المعمد المآ
% Increase 1967 over 1961			183,921,613		(24,000)
h moreone The 10161 The	79.7%	131.9%	64.7%		(7.4%)
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1959	366,208,485	7 277 270 001	000 00= ((1		
% Increase 1967 over 1959		137,372,824	228,835,661		-0-
h increase 1901 ever 1909	125.1%	258.7%	95.6%		-0-
BIENNIAL CHANGES					
Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963	88,487,731	33,801,793	54,913,922		(227,984)
% Increase 1965 over 1963	21.3%	34.1%	17.4%		(58.8%)
		J . +/u	±1.4.1/n		(50.0%)
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961	48,032,564	17,102,239	30,866,342		62 a01
% Increase 1963 over 1961	13.1%	20.8%			63,984
,	نام شده زیند	£0.070	10.9%		19.7%
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959	73,951,526	29,013,477	hile only obo		al aas
% Increase 1961 over 1959			44,914,048		24,000
1 marca cont a myor 0461 mg/g	25.3%	54.6%	18.8%		8.0%

TABLE VII

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1959 THROUGH 1967

Deficiencies Included

SEMI-STATE	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
1967 Session 1965 Session 1963 Session 1961 Session 1959 Session	\$3,307,158 · 2,422,085 2,769,760 2,260,968 2,493,630	\$3,207,158 2,232,085 2,289,760 1,770,968 1,993,630	\$100,000 100,000 100,000 100,000	\$ -0- -0- 280,000 280,000 280,000	\$ -0- 90,000 100,000 110,000 120,000
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1967 over 1965 % Increase 1967 over 1965	885,073 36.5%	975 , 073 43 . 7%	-		(90,000) (100%)
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1963 % Increase 1967 over 1963	537 ,39 8 19 .4%	917,398 40.1 %	-	(280,000)	(100,000)
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1961 % Increase 1967 over 1961	1,046,190 46.3%	1,436,190 81.1 %	••	(280,000)	(110,000)
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1959 % Increase 1967 over 1959	813,528 32 .6%	1,213,528 60.9%	-	(280,000)	(120,000)
BIENNIAL CHANGES Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963 % Increase 1965 over 1963	(347,675) (12.6%)	(57,675) (2.5%)	-	(280,000)	(10,000) (10.0%)
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 % Increase 1963 over 1961	508,792 22.5%	518,792 29.3%	es	-	(10,000) (9.1%)
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	(232,662) (9 .3%)	(222,662) (11.2%)		e. -	(10,000) (8.3%)

TABLE VIII

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1959 THROUGH 1967

Deficiencies Included

STATE DEPARTMENTS	Total	General	Income Tax	Game and	All Other
	Bill	Revenue	School Fund	Fish Fund	Funds
1967 Session	\$121,905,979	\$79,338,449	\$9,065,801	\$13,621,769	\$19,879,960
1965 Session	83,551,565	58,424,858	7,121,228	11,483,070	6,522,408
1963 Session	74,765,322	52,618,437	6,414,114	10,121,465	5,611,306
1961 Session	67,324,858	48,314,036	5,074,932	8,495,982	5,439,907
1959 Session	63,204,863	44,922,406	4,877,225	7,908,966	5,496,266
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1967 over 1965 % Increase 1967 over 1965	38,354,414	20,913,591	1,944,573	2,138,699	13,357,552
	45.9 %	35.8%	27.3%	18.6%	204.8%
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1963	47,140,657	26,720,012	2,651,687	3,500,304	14,268,654
% Increase 1967 over 1963	63.1%	50.8%	41.3%	34.6%	254.3%
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1961	54,581,121	31,024,413	3,990,869	5,125,787	14,440,053
% Increase 1967 over 1961	81.1%	64.2%	78.6%	60.3%	265.4%
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1959	58,701,116	34,416,043	4,188,576	5,712,803	14,383,694
Increase 1967 over 1959	<i>9</i> 2.9%	76.6%	85.9%	72.2%	261.7%
RIENNIAL CHANGES Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963 % Increase 1965 over 1963	8,786,243	5,806,421	707,114	1,361,605	911,102
	11.8%	11.0%	11.0%	13.5%	16.2%
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961	7,440,464	4,304,401	1,339,182	1,625,483	171,399
% Increase 1963 over 1961	11.1%	8 . 9%	26.4%	19.1%	3.2%
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959	4,119,995	3,391,630	197,707	587 , 016	(56,359)
% Increase 1961 over 1959	6.5%	7.5%	4.1%	. 7 . 4%	(1.0%)

1967 enacted appropriation includes \$8,356,653 in natural resources funds and \$3,929,417 in state airport funds that were handled in separate enactments in previous sessions.

/3 -

TABLE IX

COMPARISON MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS - LEGISLATIVE SESSIONS 1959 THROUGH 1967

Deficiencies Included

WELFARE AND CORRECTIONS	Total Bill	General Revenue	Income Tax School Fund	Game and Fish Fund	All Other Funds
1967 Session 1965 Session 1963 Session 1961 Session 1959 Session	\$208,330,292 170,399,423 144,775,099 130,672,366 118,425,822	\$187,852,965 154,486,918 130,809,396 120,571,501 108,801,290	\$20,477,327 15,912,505 13,965,702 10,100,865 9,274,532	\$ - - - -	\$ - - - 350,000
ACCUMULATIVE CHANGES Dollar Increase 1967 over 1965 % Increase 1967 over 1965	37,930,869 22.3%	33,366,047 21.6%	4,564,822 28.7%		•
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1963 % Increase 1967 over 1963	63,555,193 43.9%	57,043,569 43.6%	6,511,625 46.6%		•• ·
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1961 % Increase 1967 over 1961	77,657,926 59.4%	67 ,281,46 4 55.8%	10,376,462 102.7%		-
Dollar Increase 1967 over 1959 % Increase 1967 over 1959	89 , 904,470 75 .9%	79,051,675 72.7%	11,202,795 120.8%		(350,000)
BIENNIAL INCREASES Dollar Increase 1965 over 1963 % Increase 1965 over 1963	25,624,324 17.7%	23,677,522 18.1%	1,946,803 13.9%		-
Dollar Increase 1963 over 1961 % Increase 1963 over 1961	14,102,733 10.8%	10,237,895 8.5%	3,864,837 38.3%		
Dollar Increase 1961 over 1959 % Increase 1961 over 1959	12,246,544 10.3%	11,770,211 10.8%	826,333 8.9%		(350,000)

TABLE X APPROPRIATIONS FOR EDUCATION (OTHER THAN UNIVERSITY AND STATE COLLEGES) 1942 THROUGH 1969 DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEAR

Fiscal Year	Department of Education	Education Aids ^a	Scholarships, Aids to Libraries, Junior College and Higher Education Coordinating Commission	
1942 1943 1944 1945 1946 1948 1949 1950 1951 1952 1953 1954 1956 1957 1958 1959 1961 1962 1963 1964	\$ 108,500 103,542b 162,010 152,010 208,220 222,291b 382,504 369,321d 763,894 744,258 893,049 891,966 948,589 950,153 1,175,505 1,287,342b 1,501,936 1,542,463 1,718,222 1,766,349 2,192,975 2,020,802 2,421,920	\$ 8,422,500 8,607,500 9,198,000 9,198,000 9,185,000 11,540,000 24,164,600 25,890,850 39,378,300 40,290,100 51,680,600 63,897,300 62,899,600 65,484,000 66,551,306 76,903,765 ^b 91,714,387 ^b 95,094,955 ^b 107,782,646 ^b 114,030,251 ^b 126,154,000 135,165,649 ^b 155,788,660 ^b	627,500 730,000 812,500 877,500 1,114,800 1,299,065 ^b	\$ 8,531,000 8,711,042 9,360,010 9,350,010 9,393,220 11,762,291 24,547,104 26,260,171 40,142,194 41,034,358 52,573,649 64,789,266 63,848,189 66,434,153 67,726,811 78,191,107 93,843,823 97,367,418 110,313,368 116,674,100 129,461,775 138,485,516 159,862,580
1965 1966 1967 19 6 8 1969	2,415,697 2,558,360 2,594,944 3,136,410 3,389,710	167,375,888 ^b 178,031,000 186,803,000 221,908,865 239,739,752	2,508,000 3,607,862 ^e & f 4,521,772 8,492,136 ^f 8,737,975 ^f	172,299,585 184,197,222 193,919,716 233,537,411 251,867,437

(a) Excludes: Aid to Common School Districts, Tuition, and Transportation Aid-Schools of Agriculture, Census Aid and Endowment Apportionment.

(b) Includes deficiency appropriations, except employees' compensation.

(c) Beginning in 1948, appropriations for certain activities which had been classed as part of school aids were made a part of the departmental appropriation.

(d) Includes Community School Lunch Appropriation from 1950 on.

(e) Includes Higher Education Coordinating Commission (formerly designated as Minnesota Liaison and Facilities Commission for Higher Education) from 1966 on.

(f) The 1965 Legislature established a supplemental retirement plan for eligible personnel of the State College Board and Junior College Board and appropriated funds for the employers' share of the plan. The figures for 1966 and 1967 exclude this appropriation because the specific amounts available to the respective boards were not set forth by law. Subsequent years include the appropriations.

TABLE XI
APPROPRIATIONS FOR THE UNIVERSITY OF MINNESOTA FOR FISCAL YEARS 1935 THROUGH 1969
DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

Fiscal Year (Ending June 30th)	Maintenance and Improvements	Research & Extension ^a (including special hospitals)	Care of Indigent Patients in U. Hosp. (Shared: ½ County, ½ State)	National Defense Student Loan Program	Sub-Total of All Except Bldg. Appropriations	Building Projects	Grand Total
1935	\$ 2,800,000	\$ 77,500	\$ 330,000		\$ 3,207,500	\$ None	\$ 3,207,500
1936	3,100,000	90,500	370,000		3,560,500	173,000	3,733,500
1937	3,100,000	121,500 ^b	370,000		3,591,500		3,591,500
1938	3,500,000	218,500	370,000		4,088,500	775,000	4,863,500
1939	3,500,000	166,000	370,000		4,036,000	~-	4,036,000
1940	3,540,000	165,000	400,000		4,105,000	429,500	4,534,500
1941	3,540,000	165,000	400,000		4,105,000		4,105,000
1942	3,727,910	350,000	400,000		4,477,910	346,000	4,823,910
1943	3,734,000	352,700 ^b	400,000		4,486,700		4,486,700
1944	3,890,000	425,575	490,000		4,805,575	1,175,000	5,980,575
1945	3,890,000	425,575	490,000		4,805,575		4,805,575
1946	3,825,000	540,000	620,000		4,985,000	1,156,600	6,141,600
1947	4,825,000	540,000	620,000		5,985,000		5,985,000
1948	8,087,248	714,000	908,000		9,709,248	7,683,000	17,392,248
1949	8,093,159b	720,232b	908,000		9,721,392		9,721,392
2 1950 ^c	12,252,019	989,439 ^d	1,506,546		14,748,004	14,214,000	28,962,004
1951	12,200,834	1,193,435 ^d	1,499,070		14,893,339		14,893,339
1952	14,136,654	1,174,456 ^d	2,191,728		17,502,838	2,132,690	19,635,528
1953	14,236,654	1,293,192 ^b & d	2,249,079 ^b		17,778,925		17,778,925
1954	14,847,000	1,513,983 ^d	2,129,690		18,490,673	4,056,000	22,546,673
1955	14,929,000	2,007,416b & d	2,568,833 ^b		19,505,249		19,505,249
1956	15,878,500	2,152,666 ^d	2,200,000		20,231,166	6,600,000	26,831,166
1957	15,878,500	2,157,666 ^d	2,250,000		20,286,166		20,286,166
1958	14,542,031 ^e	2,672,276	2,836,236		20,050,543	16,530,518	36,581,061
1959	18,614,386 ^e	2,538,641	2,922,138		24,075,165		24,075,165
1960	19,179,470 ^f	3,259,138	3,071,714		25,510,322	14,457,150	39,967,472
1961	20,817,239	3,341,007	3,349,244 ⁶		27,507,490		27,507,490
1962	24,189,3718	3,777,931	3,896,896		31,864,198	7,836,747	39,700,945
1963	25,023,542	3,847,428	4,141,224		33,012,194		33,012,194
1964	27,653,330	4,197,011	4,505,578		36,355,919	12,483,700	48,839,619
1965	30,800,157	4,481,386	4,813,078	_	40,094,621	,	40,094,621
1966	36,558,454h	5,308,932	4,660,000	\$121,888	46,649,274	15,820,656 ¹	62,469,930
1967	41,064,554	5,389,028	5,046,748	121,888	51,622,218		51,622,218
1968	49,067,417	6,898,500	4,311,000	217,500	60,494,417	22,739,346 ^j	83,233,763
1969	56,519,574	7,232,000	4,274,400	217,500	68,243,474		68,243,474

- (a) Agricultural Extension Agents not under the University until fiscal 1942, and appropriations therefor for prior years are excluded.
- (b) Includes deficiency appropriation.
- (c) Duluth T. C. was made a branch of the University by the 1947 Legislature, and 1950 was the first year funds were appropriated directly to the University for the Duluth Branch.
- (d) Does not include tuition and transportation aid for students at Schools of Agriculture.
- (e) The University's share of the Occupation Tax on Iron Ore was used for Maintenance and Improvements beginning in 1958. The 1957 "Windfall" was added to fiscal year 1958 accounting for the difference in comparison with fiscal 1959.
- (f) Includes \$100,000 for replacement of supplies and equipment destroyed by fire in the Chemistry Building.
- (g) Appropriations for the University Branch at Morris are included in 1962 and thereafter.
- (h) Appropriations for the Agricultural and Technical Institute at Crookston are included in 1966 and thereafter.
- (i) Buildings authorized totaled \$21,869,332 with appropriations from state funds of \$15,820,656.
- (j) Buildings authorized totaled \$28,657,862 with appropriations from state funds of \$22,739,346.

TABLE XII

APPROPRIATIONS FOR MINNESOTA STATE COLLEGES 1946 THROUGH 1969

DEFICIENCIES INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

(The colleges include Bemidji, Mankato, Moorhead, St. Cloud, Winona and Southwest)

Fiscal Year	Maintenance & Equipment	Repairs & Betterments ^a	Training Program Handicapped Children	State College Board	National Defense Student Loan Program	Contingent Fund, Campus Planning, Liaison Committee & Special Projects	Grand Total
1946	\$ 951,415	\$ 49,825	\$	\$ 6,100	\$	\$	\$1,007,340
1947	1,020,371	56,200		6,300		·	1,082,871
1948	1,220,782	101,433		7,500			1,329,715
1949	1,297,347 ^b	51,050		7,788 ^b			1,356,185
1950	2,062,096	169,400		10,436			2,241,932
1951	2,072,986	151,350		10,508			2,234,844
1952	2,581,917	129,810		11,309			2,723,036
1953	2,669,009	89,800		11,123			2,769,932
1954	2,808,257	134,875		10,975			2,954,107
1955	2,900,050 ^b	75,060		11,047			2,986,157
1956	2,938,975	148,874		ć			3,087,849
1957	3,047,980	71,800	Andrew Control of the				3,119,780
1958	4,260,873	77,500	46,400			100,000	4,484,773
1959	4,912,629	77,500	47,000		22,835b	100,000	5,059,964
1960	5,225,869	80,000	50,500		,000	92,500	5,448,869
1961	6,024,141	80,000	52,500			52,500	
1962	7,032,463	80,000	72,250	Tell all the fi	75,000	97,000	6,156,641 7,356,713
1963	7,588,121	80,000	72,750	19.5	107,191b	57,000	
1964	8,586,261	80,000	82,500		120,000	200,630	7,848,062
1965	9,532,834	80,000	82,500		153,890b	26,400	9,069,391
1966	11,885,208 ^d	85,000	97,500	4	174,738	255,000	9,875,624
1967	13,794,445b	85,000	97,500		206,918	•	12,497,446
1968	20,467,246e	160,000	105,000		252,111	30,000	13,913,863
1969	23,093,232e		105,000		299,556	485,000 65,000	21,469,357 23,562,788

⁽a) Including special projects prior to 1958 but not major building appropriations. Beginning in 1958 the special projects are included in the Building Bill.

(b) Including deficiency appropriations -- however, deficiency appropriations for employees' compensation for injuries have not been included.

(d) Includes Southwest State College from 1966 on.

⁽c) The expenses of the State College Board are included with the appropriation to the colleges. The 1955
Legislature made a single appropriation to the Board for the expenses of the Board and the five colleges.

In previous years appropriations were made to the individual colleges.

⁽e) Includes \$15,000 for Repairs and Betterments.

TABLE XIII APPROPRIATIONS FOR STATE INSTITUTIONS 1940 THROUGH 1969
DEFICIENCIES AND EMPLOYEES COMPENSATION INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

	Year	Department of Public Welfare ^a	Department of Corrections	Mental Hospitals	Children's Treatment Center	Correctional Youth	Institutions Adult	Minn. Residential Treatment Center	Other Institutions ^b	Total
	1940 1941 1942 1943 1944 1945 1946	\$ 501,430 527,226 128,904 157,666 308,200 322,235 419,226	\$	\$ 2,353,950 2,281,000 2,362,821 2,689,542 3,149,221 3,130,275 3,590,821	\$ 90,000 90,000 75,000 75,000 62,000	\$ 352,175 333,675 345,750 339,600 425,901 432,844 492,209	\$ 755,500 660,700 865,200 854,500 869,834 882,742 788,034	\$	\$ 1,960,300 1,842,050 1,851,350 1,855,545 2,335,999 2,373,786 2,739,409	\$ 6,013,355 5,734,651 5,629,025 5,971,855 7,089,155 7,141,882 8,091,699
	1947 1948 1949	409,261 262,051 274,634 1,067,268		4,070,727 5,140,112 5,626,179 8,780,815	50,000 109,679 110,087 90,000	536,862 695,603 712,242 863,661	842,033 1,650,442 1,623,982 1,903,921		3,129,477 4,100,375 4,237,908 5,697,326	9,038,360 11,958,262 12,585,032 18,402,991
3	1951 1952 1953 1954 1955 1956 1957 1958	1,103,977 1,117,252 1,140,123 889,657 865,221 1,289,596 1,297,466 1,436,950 1,425,315		9,749,175 12,581,368 12,734,186 12,909,517 12,949,879 12,880,833 13,057,796 15,006,674 15,678,566	90,500 83,850 77,400 49,530 47,831 55,541 50,694 79,000 79,054	862,301 784,703° 790,331 905,180 899,926 1,059,158 1,089,810 1,275,871 1,310,519	1,864,663 2,292,068 2,255,896 2,307,038 2,361,139 2,657,272 2,663,808 3,045,213 3,152,297		5,972,220 7,012,965 7,298,369 7,600,508 7,554,227 7,563,196 7,679,273 8,985,202 10,170,818	19,642,836 23,872,206 24,296,305 24,661,430 24,678,223 25,505,596 25,838,847 29,828,910 31,816,569
	1960 ^d 1961 1962 1963 1964 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969	1,733,103 1,786,182 2,087,820 2,175,683 2,510,680 2,632,642 3,003,147 3,078,566 3,786,870 4,057,094	1,098,642 1,114,817 1,264,214 1,272,135 1,448,065 1,554,733 2,118,210 2,213,255	17,073,903 17,283,445 18,466,627 18,601,473 19,325,960 19,369,330 20,212,761 20,539,618 24,514,281 24,685,462	172,598 238,800 264,679 272,508 	1,734,496 1,720,159 1,942,147 1,952,104 2,158,430 2,172,179 2,384,888 2,482,244 3,326,212 3,309,670	3,519,718 3,556,710 3,911,385 3,884,739 4,148,151 4,150,073 4,383,123 4,383,647 5,489,361 5,476,797	1,174,939 1,633,980 1,903,831 1,950,285 2,504,147 2,585,346	11,794,412 12,266,775 14,487,206 15,822,447 17,725,535 18,314,486 19,459,980 20,667,990 25,614,240 26,726,682	36,028,230 36,852,071 42,258,506 43,823,771 48,307,909 49,544,829 52,795,795 54,667,083 67,353,321 69,054,306

⁽a) Department of Welfare includes administration of the various aid programs as well as the institutions.
(b) Includes institutions for the mentally deficient, epileptic, blind, deaf, tubercular, crippled children, and nursing homes.
(c) The institutions for boys and girls were placed under Youth Conservation Commission in 1952.
(d) Commencing in 1960, all biennial appropriations are divided equally between years. Prior to 1950 only the contingent appropriation was divided.

TABLE XIV APPROPRIATIONS FOR WELFARE AND CORRECTIONS ACTIVITIES 1940-69 DEFICIENCY APPROPRIATIONS INCLUDED IN PERTINENT YEARS

Fiscal	Old Age	Medical Assistance	Aid to Dependent	Aid to	Vocational Rehab. of	Aid to County	Div. of Soc. Welfare	County Prob. Services	Children Under	Public	Equalization	Veterans'	Aid to	
Year	Assistance	to the Needy	Children	Blind	Blind	Sanatoria	Admin.	Reimbursement	Guardianship	Relief	of Costs	Relief	Disabled	Total
1940	\$ 5,300,000	\$	\$1,200,000	\$ 70,000	\$	\$400,000	\$220,000 ⁸	\$	\$	\$5,500,000 ^c	\$	\$ 25,000	d-	#10 715 000
1941	5,400,000 ^b		900,000	150,000 ^b	·	425,000	220,000 ²	Ψ	Ψ	3,250,000	Ψ	25,000	\$	\$12,715,000
1942	5,660,000		675,000	172,600		400,000	379,880			4,750,000°				12,037,480
1943	5,810,000		925,000	181,600 ^b		400,000	436,380			4,250,000				12,002,980
1944	6,750,000		776,000	211,000		405,000	204,800		95,000	d	****	625,000		9,066,800
1945	7,000,000		900,000	230,000		420,000	259,800		95,000	1,500,000		625,000		11,029,800
1946	6,855,000		869,500	234,500		270,000	145,000		95,000	660,000		450,000		9,579,000
1947	9,100,000		1,570,000	272,500		370,000	343,000		95,000	660,000		500,000		12,910,500
1948	8,655,724	~~=	1,459,000	347,945	13 , 685	325,000	364,616		150,000	720,000		500,000		12,535,970
1949	9,451,135		1,651,900	363,683	13,685	325,000	371,150		150,000	720,000		500,000		13,546,553
1950	9,515,430		2,503,703	396,108	37,115	521,000	387,225		310,000	650,000	750,000	600,000		15,670,581
1951	10,311,975		2,866,886	433,941	37,115	521,000	395,015		320,000	650,000	750,000	600,000		16,885,932
1952	12,300,203		2,779,850	511,850	33,350	535,000	409,046		370,000	650,000	750,000	500,000		18,839,299
1953	13,104,913		3,005,285	829,000	34,650	547,000	414,631		370,000	650,000	750,000	500,000		20,205,479
1954	11,617,468		2,598,945	568,951	41,495	614,000	403,700		380,000	600,000	650,000	500,000	24,000	17,998,560
1955	12,207,1136		2,727,448 ^b	522,171	41,250	639,000	389,719		389,000	600,000	650,000	500,000	36,000	18,701,701
1956	13,043,685		2,968,026	381,524	57 , 500	575,000	е		387,500	500,000	700,000	450,000	306,748	19,369,983
1957	13,232,166		3,193,307	422,432	71,000	909,000			387,500	500,000	700,000	500,000 ^b	325,928	20,241,333
1958	13,024,587		3,606,714	406,261	60,000	823,500			400,000	500,000	975,000	450,000	291,733	20,537,795
1959	13,644,851		4,206,225 ^b	432,515	65,000	823,500			410,000	510,000 ^b	1,150,000 ^b	600,000 ^b	361,883	22,203,974
1960	12,994,000		4,461,000	341,000	60,000	625,000		200,000	490,079	500,000	1,175,000	525,000	274,500	21,645,579
1961	13,963,000		4,826,000	349,500	60,000	600,000		205,000	649,241 ¹	500,000	1,300,000	500,000	275,000	23,227,741
1962	11,500,000		5,970,000	400,000	60,000	500,000		172,131	600,000	500,000	1,150,000	575,000	328,000	21,755,131
1963	12,800,000		6,650,000	475,000	60,000	500,000		185,131 ^b	732,433 ^r	500,000	1,250,000	550,000	358,000	24,060,564
1964	11,990,000		7,390,000	438,000	60,000	100,000		198,000	719,880	500,000	1,150,000	575,000	311,000	23,431,880
1965	6,100,000	6,900,000 ^g	7,610,000	469,000	60,000	95,000		200,000	1,001,613 ^f	500,000	1,250,000	550,000	328,000	25,063,613
1966	5,184,000	(4,262,000) (7,680,000)	10,000,000	312,500	90,000	50,000		242,000	685,000	i	900,000		1,271,500	31,252,000
1967	3,515,000		10,600,000	176,000	90,000	40,000		242,000	918,350 [£]	<u>i</u>	925,000	575,000	1,127,500	20 577 850
1968	5,100,000	17,500,000	8,000,000	166,000	105,000			350,000	685,000	<u>i</u>	1,300,000			32,577,850
1969	4,700,000	20,200,000	8,400,000	168,000	115,000			350,000	685,000	i	1,300,000		1,575,000	35,511,000 38,348,000

⁽a) To Board of Control and State Relief Agency which administered public assistance prior to creation of Division of Social Welfare.

(b) Includes deficiency appropriation.

(c) Balances of funds for work projects to be available for second year of biennium.

(d) Balance from previous biennium reappropriated.

(e) Included in table of Institution Appropriations.

(f) Includes \$130,541 deficiency appropriation in 1961, \$82,433 in 1963, \$202,773 in 1965, and \$233,350 in 1967 for Indian relief in Becker County.

(g) Medical Assistance to the Needy prior to January 1, 1966, was Medical Assistance to the Aged program.

(h) Appropriation for 1966 and following year is for the Medical Assistance to the Needy Program.

(i) No appropriation made. An appropriation of \$25,000 per year was made to pay a portion of the cost of distributing surplus commodities to the counties.

TABLE XV
TOTAL MAJOR APPROPRIATION BILLS
(DOES NOT INCLUDE DEFICIENCY APPROPRIATIONS)

	Welfare and		State	a a a a a	37
Total	Corrections	Education	Departments	Semi-State	Year
41,261,839.72	\$15,530,954.22	\$ 15,166,451.00	\$ 9,878,118.50	\$ 686,316.00	1944
42,026,189.35	16,007,034.85	15,162,726.50	10,170,752.00	685,676.00	1945
44,249,778.78	16,760,698.02	15,584,892.00	11,237,846.71	66 6,342.05	1946
52,971,249.31	19,801,763.27	19,033,840.00	13,405,562.71	730,083.33	1947
76,266,206.94	23,349,232.00	35,852,236.00	16,101,440.94	963,298.00	1948
79,060,203.46	24,194,618.00	37,584,106.00	16,355,336.94	926,142.52	1949
109,989,972.00	34,073,572.00	57,198,130.00	17,725,366.00	992,904.00	1950
113,860,303.00	36,506,645.00	58,228,541.00	18,166,881.00	958,236.00	1951
137,441,866.00	41,876,802.00	72,904,523.00	21,563,306.00	1,097,235.00	1952
141,831,773.00	43,561,283.00	75,347,036.00	21,869,867.00	1,053,587.00	1953
151,469,245.46	41,809,951.46	85,364,969.00	23,142,728.00	1,151,597.00	1954
154,530,638.55	41,532,589.55	88,911,290.00	22,996,198.00	1,090,561.00	1955
160,998,477.00	43,691,331.00	91,273,326.00	24,956,182.00	1,077,638.00	1956
162,859,966.00	44,219,201.00	93,349,553.00	24,224,723.00	1,066,489.00	1957
190,648,188.00	48,749,504.00	109,973,289.00	30,759,451.00	1,165,944.00	1958
198,658,421.00	51,154,068.00	116,897,379.00	29,407,136.00	1,199,838.00	1959
224,730,164.69	55,414,313.00	133,853,539.69	34,239,663.00	1,222,649.00	1960
232,434,574.00	57,110,844.00	140,613,231.00	33,480,467.00	1,230,032.00	1961
267,920,944.00		168,782,686.00		1,128,577.00	
279,194,968.00		179,158,567.00	32,273,380.00		
310,627,082.00	71,536,039.00	200,587,230.00	37,144,009.00		-
324,952,292.00		213,971,052.00	36,826,642.00		
369,936,609.00		243,523,942.00	41,272,146.00		
388,008,051.00		259,660,797.00			
486,964,521.00		315,246,185.00	68,077,686.00		
504,037,595.00		343,673,699.00	53,160,270.00	1,663,120.00	T 969
	57,110,844.00 63,693,627.00 66,634,931.00 71,536,039.00 72,794,642.00 83,935,295.00 85,571,578.00 102,003,928.00	168,782,686.00 179,158,567.00 200,587,230.00 213,971,052.00 243,523,942.00 259,660,797.00 315,246,185.00	34,316,054.00 32,273,380.00 37,144,009.00 36,826,642.00 41,272,146.00 41,562,910.00	1,230,032.00 1,128,577.00 1,128,090.00 1,359,804.00 1,359,956.00 1,205,226.00 1,212,766.00 1,636,722.00 1,663,120.00	1962 1963 1964 1965 1966 1967 1968 1969

Institutions were in separate appropriation act through 1955. The Department of Corrections was added in 1961. The amounts have been combined for comparative purposes.

TABLE XVI

STATE BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THE 1965 LEGISLATURE

Chap Number		
532	Employment Security Building	\$ 3,000,000
875	Maximum Effort School Aid (Additional funds for debt service and capital loans)	10,400,000
882	1965 Building Bill	54,790,000
892	Purchase Baudette Bridge	1,400,000
	TOTAL	\$69,590,000
	STATE BONDS AUTHORIZED BY THE 1967 LEGISLATURE	
583	Maximum Effort School Aid (Additional funds for debt service and capital loans)	\$ 2,800,000
873	Trunk Highways	100,000,000
X-8	1967 Building Bill	64,094,000 ^a
	TOTAL	\$166,894,000
(a)	Includes \$300,000 for Employment Security Building in addition authorized by Laws of 1965, Chap. 532.	to the bonds

TABLE XVII Summary Comparison of Senate, House and Conference Building Bills 1967-69

	Senate				House				Conference			
		Reappro-				Reappro-				Reappro-		
	General	•	New			priated	New		General	priated	New	
	Revenue	Balances	Borrowing	Total	Revenue	Balances	Borrowing	Total	Revenue	Balances	Borrowing	Total
Mental Institutions												
Anoka	\$ 67,600			\$ 412,200		\$500,000	\$	\$ 567,600	\$ 97,600	\$194,000	\$	\$ 291,600
Fergus Falls	96,800	245,000		341,800	96,800	54,000	286,000	436,800	96,800	54,000	245,000	395,800
Hastings	59,000	204,134		254,134	118,934		112,200	231,134	151,934		102,200	254,134
Moose Lake	66,800	217,615		284,415	145,800		138,616	284,416	66,800	79,000	138,616	284,416
Rochester	92,800	204,315		297,115	107,885	100,000	122,500	330,385	87,470	119,215	122,500	329,185
St. Peter	106,000	811,000	1	917,000	196,000		714,000	910,000	106,000	75,000	714,000	895,000
Security Hospital		51,500)	51,500	29,000		•	29,000		51,500		51,500
Willmar	76,000	198,000)	274,000	84,000		182,000	266,000	76,000	8,000	182,000	266,000
Sub-Total	556,000	2,276,164		2,832,164	846,019	654,000	1,555,316	3,055,335	682,604	580,715	1,504,316	2,767,635
Mentally Deficient Institutio	ns											
Brainerd	72,100	44,000)	116,100	116,100			116,100	116,100			116,100
Cambridge	633,400	-		633,400	114,400		600,000	714,400	114,400		600,000	714,400
Faribault	143,500	243,620	1	387,120	196,500		2,184,700	2,381,200	196,500		184,700	381,200
Lake Owasso		7,500	1	7,500	23,500			23,500	23,500		•	23,500
Owatonna	31,300	59,000	1	90,300	86,300			86,300	86,300			86,300
Shakopee Home For Children	1,500	·		1,500	1,500			1,500	1,500			1,500
Sub-Total	881,800	354,120		1,235,920	538,300		2,784,700	3,323,000	538,300		784,700	1,323,000
Special Schools and Hospitals												
Braille	16,200	18,765	ı	34,965	39,965		17,000	56,965	39,965		17,000	56,965
Deaf	35,400	26,000		61,400	61,400		,,	61,400	61,400		,	61,400
Gillette	22,000	75,000)	97,000	97,000			97,000	97,000			97,000
Glen Lake	49,900	107,500		157,400	67,400		220,000	287,400	49,900	17,500	90,000	157,400
Ah-Gwah-Ching	31,400	39,000		70,400	63,400		150,000	213,400	31,400	37,000	20,000	68,400
Sub-Total	154,900	266,265		421,165	329,165	·	387,000	716,165	279,665	54,500	107,000	441,165
Adult Corrections												
Reformatory for Men	1,575,960			1,575,960	246,560		1,346,600	1,593,160	246,560		1,294,400	1,540,960
Reformatory for Women	46,500			46,500	46,500		, ,	46,500	46,500		,,	46,500
State Prison	1,007,850			1,007,850	259,850		808,000	1,067,850	259,850		748,000	1,007,850
Sub-Total	2,630,310			2,630,310	552,910		2,154,600	2,707,510	552,910		2,042,400	2,595,310
Youth Corrections												
Home School for Girls	498,180			498,180	63,180		435,000	498,180	63,180		435,000	498,180
Training School for Boys	75,000			75,000	75,000			75,000	75,000		,	75,000
St. Croix Camp	165,000			165,000	1,000		165,000	166,000	1,000		165,000	166,000
Thistledew Camp	212,000			212,000	38,500		213,500	252,000	38,500		173,500	212,000
Willow River Camp	6,500			6,500	6,500		,	6,500	6,500		2.0,500	6,500
Residential Treatment Cente				638,500	111,500		527,000	638,500	111,500		527,000	638,500
Sub-Total	1,595,180			1,595,180	295,680		1,340,500	1,636,180	295,680	 	1,300,500	1,596,180
State Colleges	375,000		16,701,087	a 17,076,087	713,000		16,503,421 ^a	17,216,421	713,000		17,293,087 ^a	18,006,087
Junior Colleges	70,000		8,844,500	a 8,914,500	70,000		8,844,500 ^a	8,914,500	70,000		8,839,500 ^a	8,909,500

TABLE XVII (cont.)
Summary Comparison
of

Senate, House and Conference Building Bills 1967-69

	****		Senate				House			c	onference	
	General	Reappro- priated	New		General	Reappro- priated	New		General	Reappro-	New	
		Balances	Borrowing	Total		Balances	Borrowing	Total	Revenue	priated Balance	New Borrowing	Total
University of Minnesota							0		1.0,01.00	Daranec	2011011116	10141
Minneapolis			6,172,568	6,172,568			8,279,383	8,279,383			7,663,470	7,663,470
St. Paul			6,369,742	6,369,742			7,542,000	7,542,000			6,881,942	6,881,942
Duluth			3,003,300	3,003,300			3,175,334	3,175,334			3,048,334	3,048,334
Morris			2,390,600	2,390,600			1,745,500	1,745,500			2,390,600	2,390,600
Crookston			332,000	332,000			672,000	672,000			672,000	672,000
Waseca			15,000	15,000			140,000	140,000			15,000	15,000
Grand Rapids			168,000	168,000			200,000	200,000			168,000	168,000
Rosemount			120,000	120,000			240,000	240,000			240,000	240,000
Cloquet			70,000	70,000			70,000	70,000			70,000	70,000
Lake Itasca			52,500	52,500			52,500	52,500			52,500	52,500
Excelsior Fruit Breeding Far	·m		34,500	34,500			34,500	34,500			34,500	
Excelsior Landscape Abboretu			66,000	66,000			16,000	16,000				34,500
Lamberton	uu		15,000	15,000							66,000	66,000
Morris Station			98,000				15,000	15,000			15,000	15,000
Land Acquisition			•	98,000			229,560	229,560			243,000	243,000
Sub-Total			1,179,000	1,179,000			1,179,000	1,179,000			1,179,000	1,179,000
Suo-local			20,086,210	20,086,210			23,590,777	23,590,777			22,739,346	22,739,346
Employment Security			300,000 ^b	300,000			300,000 ^b	300,000			300,000 ^b	300,000
Capitol Group	283,550		1,267,000	1,550,550	625,264	300,000	2,248,640	3,173,904	565,264		2,082,390	2,647,654
Veterans Home	79,100			79,100	255,000			255,000	190,000	25,000		215,000
Capitol Area Architectural												
and Planning Commission									145,000			145,000
Historical Society					2,800			2,800	23,800			23,800
Civil Defense									12,500			12,500
Armory and Municipal												
Buildings at Morris							43,750	43,750				
Contingencies												
Administration			100,000	100,000			200,000	200,000			200,000	200,000
Higher Education Facilities			6,000,000	6,000,000			6,500,000	6,500,000			6,500,000	6,500,000
Administration			100,000	100,000			175,000	175,000			175,000	175,000
Planning			200,000	200,000			200,000	200,000			200,000	200,000
Bond Expense		·	25,000	25,000			25,000	25,000			25,000	25,000
TOTALS	6,625,840	2,896,549	53,623,797	63,146,186	4,228,138	954,000	66,853,204	72,035,342	4,068,723	660,215	64,093,239	68,822,177

⁽a) See Table XVIII for detail of new borrowing for state and junior colleges.

NOTE: Each bill also authorized the construction of a storage building for the licence plate plant at the State Reformatory for Men. The appropriation, not to exceed \$50,000, is included in the State Departments appropriation bill and is not included in the above figures.

⁽b) This authorization is an addition to the separate bonding issue authorized in 1965 for an Employment Security Building.

TABLE XVIII
DETAIL OF NEW BORROWING FOR STATE AND JUNIOR COLLEGE BUILDINGS

STATE COLLEGES	SENATE	HOUSE	CONFERENCE
Bemidji	\$ 2,075,000	\$ 2,075,000	¢ 2 075 000
Mankato	553,000	710,000	\$ 2,075,000
Moorhead	2,640,000	3,240,000	613,000
St. Cloud	3,095,000	3,060,000	3,265,000 3,060,000
Southwest	6,006,000	4,610,000	6,006,000
Winona	1,218,000	1,175,000	1,175,000
Dormitory and Food Service	4,000,000	4,000,000	4,000,000
Planning	462,625	525,625	462,625
Land Acquisition	1,495,000	_ 1,480,000	1,480,000
Total	\$21,544,625	\$20,875,625	\$22,136,625
Less Estimated Federal Funds	4,843,538	4,372,204	4,843,538
Estimated State Cost	\$16,701,087	\$16,503,421	\$17,293,087
HINTOR COLL BORG		•	
JUNIOR COLLEGES			100 m
Anoka-Ramsey Brainerd	\$ 835,000	\$ 835,000	\$ 835,000
Fergus Falls	417,000	417,000	417,000
Hibbing	472,000	472,000	472,000
Itasca	522,000	522,000	522,000
Mesabi	357,000	357,000	357,000
North Hennepin	587,000 2,150,000	587,000	587,000
Lakewood	2,150,000	2,150,000	2,150,000
Rochester	1,170,000	2,150,000 1,170,000	2,150,000
S. E. Metropolitan	1,500,000	1,500,000	1,170,000 1,500,000
S. W. Metropolitan	832,000	832,000	832,000
Northland	600,000	600,000	600,000
Willmar	900,000	900,000	900,000
Worthington	450,000	450,000	450,000
Planning	342,500	342,500	337,500
Total	\$13,284,500	\$13,284,500	\$13,279,500
Less Estimated Federal Funds	4,440,000	4,440,000	4,440,000
Estimated State Cost	\$ 8,844,500	\$ 8,844,500	\$ 8,839,500